M Workforce Development Area 1
- Adams, Brown, Pike & Scioto Counties
%’\/ A proud partner of the American Job Center Network
OhioMeansJobs.

Board Meeting Agenda

Date: Wednesday, September 24, 2025
Time: 10:00am —11:00am
Location: Workforce Board Office, 4057-A Gallia Pike, Franklin Furnace, OH

Virtual Option: https://us02web.zoom.us/|/84937326427 ?pwd=FhUAdsr5Lf7hmxfpaErahd4vb5Hapl.1

. Call to Order & Roll Call
Il. Approval of Previous Meeting Minutes

[ll. Standard Reports

1. Monthly Reports

2. Fiscal Reports

3. Auditor of State updates

4. WIOA Monitoring Reports

IV. Updates

1. WIOA Reauthorization Update
2. Ohio Labor Market Information

V. Action Items (motions required)

Regional WIOA Plan

Policy: Labor Exchange Policy

GRIT 4.0 Contracts & MOUs

GRIT 4.0 Lease Extensions

Foundations for the Trades budget/contract

s wN e

Vi. Upcoming Events & Opportunities
1. Apprenticeship Summit in Marietta--Nov 7th
VII. New/Old Business

VIll. Adjournment (motion required)

Next Meeting: Wednesday, November 19, 2025



Workforce Development Board #1

Meeting Minutes

Date: June 11, 2025

Location: 4057A Gallia Pike, Franklin Furnace, OH 45629 and Online via Zoom

Attendance

Board Members Present: Josh Renison, Matt Louanglath, Paula Baumgardner, Trampas
Puckett, Kyle Copley, Chuck Taylor, Jeff Hamilton, Paul Worley, Holly Johnson

Staff Present: Crystal Keaton (Director), Michelle Cutlip, Dwayne Alexander, Sarah Carver

Guest: Mindy Purpero, Dan Wickerham, Tammy Dempsey, Debora Plymail, Susan Huff,
Leslie Mingee, Toni Moore, Lisa Pfeifer, Jeanette Langford

Call to Order and Roll Call

The meeting was called to order with roll call conducted to confirm attendance. All
members indicated presence.

Approval of Minutes

Members were asked if corrections to the previous meeting minutes were necessary. No
corrections were proposed. A motion to approve the minutes was made, seconded, and
carried unanimously. Motion made by Josh Renison. Paula Baumgarder seconded the
minutes. Motion carried.



Monthly Reports
Special Grants Report

The Car Repair Program is concluding June 30th, with a goal of 902 repairs on track to be
met and 100% grant expenditure expected. Job placement rate positive at approximately
82%.

Discussion noted the pilot nature of the program, with community action agencies poised
to continue funding directly after June 30th. State budget negotiations for continued
funding ongoing.

RESEA Report

Sarah Carver reported 151 individuals served, with high completion rates of initial and
substantial sessions. Local layoffs and PIXEL in Ross County contribute to increasing
participant numbers.

GRIT Project Report

Over 11,665 youth and 3,118 adults assessed, with approximately 400 students expected to
receive training statewide this summer through GRIT funding and additional sources.

Funding currently at approximately $15 million for next year with potential increase to $19
million pending state budget finalization. An accounting of prior funding usage can be
provided on request.

Unemployment Insurance (Ul} Pilot Report

March-April data show an average of 34 individuals per day served, both online and in-
person. A career fair event was held recently in Ross County with ongoing coordination for
transition services.

Layoff notifications are being managed confidentially, and rapid response connections and
entrepreneurship resources have been shared.

Business Resource Netweork (BRN) Update

In April, 109 businesses engaged, with 105 reporting growth and 4 at risk. Resume
screenings and job postings totaled 539. Youth and adult work experience placements
currently number 80, with anticipated increase over summer months.

Participant and Fiscal Report
Program enrollments by county: Adams (151), Brown (172), Pike (401), Scioto (648).
Fiscal monitoring reports indicate minor concerns addressed promptly across counties.

State monitoring of fiscal operations underway with results expected at the next meeting.



Fiscal Monitoring Updates

Scioto County had one invoice discrepancy corrected. Adams and Brown Counties showed
no concerns. Pike County corrected a payroll hour discrepancy promptly.

One Stop MOU Approval

The 2026 budget for OM] Centers is $558,317, reflecting computer hardware/software
upgrades.

Partner contributions increased from BRN and RESEA to offset costs. Future renegotiation
anticipated due to funding uncertainties.

A motion to approve the MOU as presented was made, seconded, and approved
unanimously.

Trampas Puckett made the motion. Matt Louanglath seconded the motion. Motion carried.

Library MOU Approval

No-cost MOUs with Scioto, Pike, Adams, Brown County Libraries, and Union Township
Library to provide remote workforce services approved through 2027 unanimously.

Matt Louanglath made the motion to approve. Josh Renison seconded the motion. Motion
carried.

Youth Contract Extensions

Contracts with ABTAP, Pike CAC, and Scioto County Community Action extended through
June 30, 2026. These providers also oversee TANF CCAP programs in counties.

Motion to approve extensions passed unanimously.

Matt Louanglath made the motion. Josh Renison seconded the motion. Motion was
approved.



PY25 and FY26 Allocations

State funding cut of 16.9% resulting in $415,402 less funding. Detailed allocation matrix
presented for approval.

Motion to approve allocations was seconded and carried unanimously.

Matt Louanglath made a motion to approve the PY25/FY 26 Allocations. Trampas Puckett
seconded the motion. Motion carried.

Transfer of Dislocated Worker Funds

Request to transfer 100% of PY25 and FY26 Dislocated Worker funds to Adult use
approved, maintaining flexibility to revert funds if needed for large dislocations.

Motion passed with unanimous approval.

Matt Louanglath made the motion. Josh Renison seconded the motion. Motion was
approved.

ODJFS Subgrant Agreement

Annual subgrant agreement for fund distribution approved with motion seconded and
passed unanimously.

Paula Baumgardner made the motion to approve. Trampas seconded the motion. Motion
carried.



GRIT Project MOU Modifications

Ohio Valley Employment Resource (Workforce Area 15): Budget modification
reallocating $70,000 from staff training to adult training line item approved without
changing total budget.

Matt Lounglath made the motion. Paula Baumgardner second. Motion approved.

Carroll County JFS: Budget modification reducing staffing and training dollars with
reallocation of funds approved.

Trampas Puckett made a motion to approve. Matt Louanglath seconded. Motion carried

SCCTC Board Agreement 2025-26

Annual contract for employment of key staff approved. Two abstentions recorded. Motion
carried.

Matt Louanglath made the motion. Josh Renison seconded. Motion approved. Kyle Copley
and Trampas Puckett abstained from voting.

Staff Cost of Living Adjustment (COLA)

Annual 2% COLA and $500 one-time payment approved for staff (includes Director,
Dwayne, Sarah, Michelle} with two abstentions noted.

Matt Louanglath made the motion. Paula Baumgardner seconded. Motion approved. Kyle
Copley and Trampas Puckett abstained from voting.



Tri-State Apprenticeship Consortium Update

Participation in ARC RISE grant planning with PA, OH, and WV ongoing. Employer and

education/workforce partner surveys distributed; board members encouraged to

complete.

Reapprenticeship Summit scheduled for July 11 in Washington, PA, with funding available

to support board member attendance.

New Business

No new business brought forward.

Next Meeting
Scheduled for Wednesday, July 23, 2025.

Adjournment

Motion to adjourn carried by unanimous consent.

Josh Renison made a motion to adjourn. Matt Louanglath seconded the motion. Motion to

adjourn was carried.



I£€ (ol t0l £8 Sjundipnaeg pmusianpun o
fic $6T ¢ ] wAopdwyy ur paderg snediaae
0 0 1o 0 ey — ) [ ST i e 3]
0 0 fo 0 R e ] e R (s
0 0 0 0 i | S (i) (atiran] e 2]
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 o 0 0
it 0T Tl 9 0 9 i T e 97 9 0z SpUNJ JONIOAA POIIOISICT JO INO PIAIIS SINPY/
b L () 12l IE1 [ [ i [Ty Lsbl Wi [T S B= I [V 0 wndol ] amday oy
0 0 0 <Rl gl i o ] 0 2 wCifl (g M= Jo Jo UG YSAL]
9Ll o1 091 LE1 L€ 00l 101 Ll 8 IR {d LL ANV dAWDD
LRI Ll NLl 1T 1 0t 01 1 6 ] 1 L YInoL FTADD
£ i T < T £ 0 ) i ] (1 0 JII0M PARIOISIA VOTM
£l 0 cll h | IF {4 T cL o 9 0T NPV VOIM
|mo | 0oy pPAso|D TR 110 Awen dupun,y
Mg Mg umosg swepy

§TOT ‘1€ IsNIny NIy GZOT ‘I ATNSL



S9JIAI9S WO0Y 921N0SaY

S9JIAI9S Jaulied

JuswAojdwaun uo ojuj

$921A19G aA1lModdng uo oju|

doys)JoM Yaieas qof pusny

Jted qof pusny

s|eyol

SJU3I|D UeIaloN

sjual) Suluiniay

Sjuailj) MaN

sjual|d |ejoL

SMUSIA [e10L

s|ejol

030198

GZ0T ‘T€ Ish3ny nuyy 520z ‘T Ainr
Jljjed] JaW0ISn) 133U SGOFSUEIAIONYO




WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD AREA 1
SPECIAL GRANT REPORTS

09/24/25

Area 1 RESEA (01/01/25 to 09/12/25)

Category Count Percentage of Completion
Selected Customers 256

Initial Sessions Completed 237 92.5%

Subsequent Sessions Completed 223 94.1%

Business Resource Network Activity: July-August 2025

Service Category July
Total Business Surveys Conducted 84
Businesses Identified as At-Risk 0
On-the-Job Training (OJT) Contracts 2
Job Postings & Resume Screenings 72
Workshops 15

August

70

70

20

Total (Q1 Start)

154

142

35

GRIT Project (07/01/25 to 08/31/25)

No data available until 1%t reimbursement is received.

Area 1 Ul Pilot Report (03/01/25 to 05/31/25)

Month # of Online Ul Customers  # In-Person Ul Customers

Served Served
March 25 455 335
April 25 411 293

May 25 462 259

Total Ul Customers
Served

790

704
721

Daily
Average
38

34
31



Z Jo | abed

(00'9£2'22)

0o

000

(L62€1)

L
000
(89'c68't)
000
000
(00'60Z'¥1)
(90'0b1'2)
000
(29'89¥'99)
000
(68'¥10'6)
000

000

lapun/
(1210}

000
000
000
000
000
000
000
000
000
00'0
000
000
o000 )
000
000
000
000

000

mmo.oxm
Buireg

00602'19

00 961'08

6C1LL

€0 156

00 8€9'¥S

(22 ¥00'€62)

(25°€86'099'2)

000

05 0¥9'Z8

005i1'v9

000

¥6 8.p'28

00209'08

96 LEV'LY

¢z 0s8's9l

Leer'e

vlras'sl

¥0 vZE'901

1ejoL

LOSHM :# Hoday
Nd9L:6S:L §20Z/22/6 :@1eq uld

9202/60

000 0060L'+9 000 000 00'SkH'v8 009€.'22 00'S¥b'v8 9202/90 UIPY UINOA YOIM dIWID vZAd
a B 5202/60

000 00961'08 o000 000 00'961'08 000 00'964'08 §202/90 UILLPY YINOA YOIM JIWDD £2Ad
- §202/90

000 621LL 000 11822 6z11L 12822 00000'L §202/90 Buipuesg rWO
a $202/60

000 £0'1L5'6 00’0 000 00'40L'6 16261 004026 $202/90 ulWpY s8N0 — SMAN
i | szoero

000 00'9€9'YS 000 000 00'8€9'VS 000 00'8E9'¥S §202/€0 UwWpY UeIS ysesd ploido-oman

000 000 (22 ¥00'E62) 000 000 12'00'€62 000

000 65 0¥6'6.0'F (L1'¥Z6'0pL'9) 000 000 26'€86'099'C 000 %001 -TvOOT-UolIea0]ly 01 193[aNS joN
1202160
000 000 000 2E'E6O'L B9 G68'Y 00'685°2} 00685} 1202/90
- 9202160
000 05°0v9'28 000 000 05'0v9'Z8 000 05 0v9'28 9202/90
N 5202160

000 006LL'VO 000 000 006GLL'¥9 000 00GLL'v9 6202/90 UIPY J9YOA PR1E20(SIA YOIM
- 1202160
000 000 000 000 00602'vL 00'60Z'¥} 0060Z'¥1 1202/90
B - 9202/60
000 ¥6'8/0'28 000 000 00619'v8 90'0¥4'Z 00619'v8 9202/90
- §202/60

000 00'209'08 000 000 00209'08 00'0 00 Z09'08 6202/90 UIWPY JINPY VOIM
. 9202/90
000 96'LEY LY 000 r 80y 85'906'L01 ¥0'€S5'0L 00 166"} 9202/90
S202/60

000 22°068'89) 000 000 22 058'894 00'0 2z 058'891 $202/60 welbold ¥3S3Y
9202/90
000 LLeey'e 00'0 000 00 €vy'2t 68'vL0'6 00 €'t 9202/90
- §202/60

000 vl 198l 000 000 viiaL'8l 00’0 ¥L19L'81L §202/60 uIwIpY Y3s3y
5202/€0

000 ¥0 ¥Z€'90) 000 9z €55} $0 vZ€'901 9z €5¢'} 0¢ L8201 5202/c0 UIWPY Z 2ul WIS yseid ploido SMaN

g=1uno20Yy G=1UNoaoY p=]unoodY meiq umeiq puadxgy uoneao||y uonepinbiq dnoig eIy

|
sjuaunsnipy sjuawasIngsiqg ANUaAdY 0} ajqejieAy 0} 3|qe|leAy _ joyeq pug
adA] unodoy Aq sje1dsueuly melq 1e6png

unoj 0joIdg JO OV - BAIY-ANS Vd - 6610S

ealy-gns Ag
GZ0Z Jequisidag
*0U| 'AlUnod 030198 Jo QYD - BBIY-ANS V4 - 6610S

:uondo Hoday
:Buipu3 Jauend
:ealy-gqng

dNONOD SNOILNI0S JIAIS

.

uoneIIouU023Y JISPUN/IBAQ

*au] ‘Ajuno9 03019g Jo OV - BAIY-ANS Vd - 6610S
q9M SI40

IS OO




Z jo z obed

(e0's28°c.22)

(12 6€6'€2)
(9% 295'6L1}

(bL12z'0L)

Japury
(19A0)

000

000
000

000

$599x3
Buyad

(8L°2€1°29)

000

¢S vor'e9l

98'299'298'L

lejol

LOSHM # Hoday
Wd9L:66:L §202/22/6 e ld

000 v5°262'846'9 (z2°6z6'0¥0°2) 25'619'29 v9'52L'591'S ve8Lr'062's 9lL'Iye'eze'e ‘[ejol 6810S
1202160
000 000 000 622689'8y 12 6€6'€2 00'225'2L 00225'2L 1202190 UIWIPY LINOA YOIAN dTNDD SZAd
h T §202/60
000 99'59¥'5/ 1 (be'100'2) T0ELY 86'LE£0'882 gy ov0'02} 00'505'882 $202/90 uiwpy spafold {e198ds 21BIS §ZAJS
) 5202160
a0 98'298'/08'L 000 000 00tE9'8.8'L pLLLL0L 00'¥£9'8.8't §202/90 spalold [e10adg alelS SZAJS
8=)UnodoYy G=JUNE2oY p=Junoooy meiq umelq puadx3y uoneao|y uonepnbry dnoig juesn
sjuauysnipy | sp nqsig anuaAay 0} 3jqe|leAy 0} 8|qejieAy /83eqg pu3
adA] Junoasoy Aq s|ei1sueuly melq 106png

“50] "AJUNG3 OI035 JO OV - Balv-ans V4 - 66108

eany-gng Ag :uondo poday
§z0z Jequaeldag :Buipuz sapend
"au ‘Aunog 0joiog Jo QYO - BAIY-ANS Y - 6610S ‘ealy-qng

dNOUD SNOLLNTIOS MHAIS

DS

UoLBINIPUO0IIY JOPUNMIBAD
*au] ‘AJuno9 03019§ Jo OV - BAIY-ANS V4 - 6610S

gaM S149 S ey OTHO




GRIT Project

GRANT AWARD

19,000,000

PREVIOUS REQUESTED

15,070,714.49

BALANCE AFTER THIS REQUEST

$3,709,773.84

TOTAL REQUESTED TO DATE

$15,290,226.16

CURRENT ACCURALS 1,557,820.41
CURRENT OBILIGATIONS 2,151,953.43
GRANT START 7/1/2023
GRANT END 6/30/2025

LIQUATION PERIOD

CURRENTLY IN LIQUATION

August 7, 2025



Certified Public Records Training!

Spots are limited!

This live virtual training seminar is in accordance with Section 109.43 of the Ohio Revised

Code requiring Sunshine Law Training for all elected officials and/or their appropriate designees. The
law directs them to obtain certification for each of their elected terms. This seminar satisfies the
mandatory CPRT training requirement.

There will be an in-depth examination of the responsibilities of elected officials and public offices,
along with a review of the rights of the public records requester. The Public Records Act, Open
Meetings Act and Records Retention will be discussed, including but not limited to:

e new changes in the laws;

e requirements to conduct proper open meetings, executive sessions, and keep and maintain
minutes;

o the requirement that records be maintained in a manner in which a public office must
comply with a public records request;

o the remedies and penalties that may be imposed for failure to comply and;

+ key definitions, exemptions, practical compliance with a public records request, enforcement
and penalties, and the roles of the Attorney General's Office and the Auditor of State.

Participants are required to attend for the entire three hours. There will be one 15-minute break.
Partial credit will not be awarded for this webinar.

Attendance requirements will be set for this training. Attendees who do not meet the attendance
requirements will not be awarded a certificate of completion.

This webinar will not be available as an on-demand training following the event. It will be presented
as a live-virtual training only.

If you are an attorney seeking CLE credit, you must enter your attorney number during the
registration process.

Carefully read and follow the technical requirements located in your confirmation email to ensure
you have a smooth viewing experience.

Questions? Contact the AOS Training Department at AOSTraining@ohicauditor.gov.

WDB Area 1 Board Members: Michelle Cutlip, Board Admin Asst., is permitted by AOS to attend on
your behalf. If you elect to have Michelle attend for you, please notify Michelle before October 1%, so
she can register to attend for you. She must provide the name of all members she's attending for at
the time of her registration.

Michelle's email michelle.cutlip@sciototech.org or call 740-259-6942




OHIO AUDITOR OF STATE
KEITH FABER

Auditor of State
Bulletin 2025-007

DATE ISSUED: August 27, 2025

TO: All Public Offices

Independent Public Accountants
FROM: Keith Faber

Ohio Auditor of State
SUBJECT: Adoption of Cybersecurity Program
Background

Ohio Rev. Code § 9.64, enacted through House Bill 96, requires political subdivisions to set and
adopt standards safeguarding against cybersecurity threats and ransomware attacks. This bulletin
details the requirements of Ohio Rev. Code § 9.64, which are effective September 30, 2025.
Local governments, typically defined as “political subdivisions™’, have increasingly become
targets for cybercriminals. They are vulnerable to cyber-attack schemes because of limited
cybersecurity budgets, outdated systems and a range of accessible electronic and digital services.
Cyber-attacks—such as ransomware, phishing, social engineering, and data breaches—disrupt
government services, expose personal and financial information, incur significant costs, and
reduce public trust.

Cybersecurity Program Compliance Requirements
Under this new law, each political subdivision’s legislative authority shall adopt a “cybersecurity

program” that safeguards the entity’s data, information technology, and information technology
resources to ensure availability, confidentiality, and integrity. See Ohio Rev. Code § 9.64 (C).

! Political subdivision is defined as a county, township, municipal corporation, or other body corporate and politic
responsible for governmental activities in a geographic area smaller than that of the state.



Bulletin 2025-007
Adoption of Cybersecurity Program
Page 2

The program shall be consistent with generally accepted best practices for cybersecurity” and
may include, but are not limited to the following:

o Identify and address the critical functions and cybersecurity risks of the political
subdivision.

e Identify the potential impacts of a cybersecurity breach.

e Specify mechanisms to detect potential threats and cybersecurity events.

e Specify procedures for the political subdivision to establish communication channels,
analyze incidents, and take actions to contain cybersecurity incidents.

e Establish procedures for the repair of infrastructure impacted by a cybersecurity incident,
and the maintenance of security after the incident.

e Establish cybersecurity training requirements for all employees. The frequency, duration,
and detail of which shall correspond to the duties of each employee. Annual training
provided by the state and the Ohio Persistent Cyber Initiative (O-PCI) program of the
Ohio Cyber Range Institute, satisfies the training requirements. The O-PCI program
delivered by the Ohio Cyber Range Institute
(https://'www.ohiocyberrangeinstitute.org/opcei) and the Ohio Cyber Reserve
(https://homelandsecurity.ohio.gov/ohio-cyber-integration-center overview) includes
online, hybrid and in person modules tailored to various types of organizations, from
small to large, rural to urban and is funded by the State and Local Cybersecurity Grant
Program.

Political subdivisions should adopt a cybersecurity program/policy that is tailored to the unique
environment/needs of their entity.

Cyber Security Program Implementation Due Dates

Entity Tvpe Due Date
County January 1, 2026
City January 1, 2026
All Other Entity Types July 1, 2026

Reporting Requirements after Discovery of Cybersecurity or Ransomware Incident

Upon discovering a cybersecurity incident or ransomware incident, the legislative authority of a
political subdivision shall notify both:

e The Executive Director of Ohio Homeland Security within the Ohio Department of
Public Safety as soon as possible but not later than 7 days after discovering the incident.
Incidents can be reported to Homeland Security’s Ohio Cyber Integration Center (OCIC)

2 Examples of generally accepted cybersecurity standards that entities use to build best practices for cybersecurity
include, but are not limited to, the National Institute of Standards and Technology (NIST) cybersecurity framework
and the Center for Intermet Security (CIS) cybersecurity best practices.



Bulletin 2025-007
Adoption of Cybersecurity Program
Page 3

at: https://homelandsecuritv.ohio.gov/ohio-cyber-integration-center, OCIC(wdps.ohio.gov
or 614-387-1089.

o The Ohio Auditor of State as soon as possible but not later than thirty (30) days after
discovering the incident. Incidents can be reported to the Ohio Auditor of State via email
to Cyberiwohioauditor.gov using the form located at:
htips://ohicauditor.gov/fraud/cybersecurity.html!

Cybersecurity Incident Defined
A cybersecurity incident includes any of the following:

e A substantial loss of confidentiality, integrity, or availability of a covered entity’s
information system or network.
e A serious impact on the safety and resiliency of a covered entity’s operation systems and
processes.
e A disruption of a covered entity’s ability to engage in business or industrial operations or
deliver goods or services.
o A disruption could include payment re-direct, payroll re-direct, spear phishing.
Refer to AOS Audit Bulletin 2024-003 for additional examples.
e Unauthorized access to an entity’s information system or network, or nonpublic
information contained therein, that is facilitated or is caused by:
o A compromise of a cloud service provider, managed service provider, or other
third-party data hosting provider; or
o A supply chain compromise.

A cybersecurity incident does not include mere threats of disruption as extortion; events
perpetrated in good faith in response to a request by the system owner or operator; or lawfully
authorized activity of a United States, state, local, tribal, or territorial government entity.

Ransomware Incident Defined

Ransomware incident is defined as a malicious cybersecurity incident in which a person or entity
introduces software that gains unauthorized access to or encrypts, modifies, or otherwise renders
unavailable a political subdivision’s information technology systems or data and thereafter the
person or entity demands a ransom to prevent the publication of the data, restore access to the
data, or otherwise remediate the impact of the software.

Ransomware Payment Only Permitted after Public Vote by Legislative Authority

A political subdivision experiencing a ransomware incident shall not pay or otherwise comply
with a ransom demand unless the political subdivision’s legislative authority formally approves
the payment or compliance with the ransom demand in a resolution or ordinance that specifically
states why the payment or compliance with the ransom demand is in the best interest of the
political subdivision.



Bulletin 2025-007
Adoption of Cybersecurity Program
Page 4

Public Records Exemption

Records, documents, or reports related to the cybersecurity program and framework, and reports
of a cybersecurity incident or ransomware incident are not public records under Ohio Rev. Code
§ 9.64. Records identifying cybersecurity-related software, hardware, goods, and services, that
are being considered for procurement, have been procured, or are being used by a political
subdivision, including vendor name, product name, project name, or project description
constitute “security records” and are exempt from the requirements to produce those records in
response to a public records request.

Testing Compliance Requirements

Compliance procedures will be developed and incorporated into the Ohio Compliance
Supplement.

Guidance

Additional cybersecurity resources, including incident response tips and free training are
available on the Auditor of State’s website at https: /ohioauditor.gov/fraud/cybersecurity.html.

Questions

If you have any questions regarding the information presented in the Bulletin, please contact the
Special Investigations Unit at the Auditor of State’s Office at 800-282-0370.

kb

Keith Faber
Ohio Auditor of State



Local Area 1
Brown County Department of Job & Family Services
CCMEP Program Monitoring Review Summary
Program Year 2024

The ODJFS Program Monitoring Review process utilizes a standardized review guide to provide
a consistent framework for conducting the reviews of all WIOA Local Areas and CCMEP lead
agencies throughout the state. Below is a chart showing each section subject to our monitoring
review and the applicability to your agency’s current review, along with a summary of any
significant observations related to those sections.

Program Name Subject to | Significant ODJFS Area
Review Observations Responsible for

Assistance

Administration Yes Yes (CIP 1) Office of Workforce
Development (OWD)

Adult/Dislocated Worker Case | No N/A None

File Review

Youth Case File Review Yes Yes (CIP 2) Office of Workforce
Development (OWD)

Special Grant Funds No N/A None

Significant Observations (See Associated Continuous Improvement Plans Attached)

CIP 1 Maintaining Records — Names of Other Individuals in the Case File
CIP 2 Reporting Accurate and Timely Information in ARIES — Incorrect Information




Workforce Development Board Area 1

4057-A Gallia Pike Crystal Keaton, Director
Franklin Furnace, OH 45629 Holly lohnson, Board Chair
(740) 259-6943

www.omjwdal.org

Continuous Improvement Plan 2

For each significant observation and recommendation noted from the ODJFS/Bureau of
Monitoring and Consulting Services review, the following is our improvement(s) taken or
proposed. For significant observations where improvement has not been taken or proposed,
attachments set forth our basis for not taking or proposing improvement:

1. Observation/Recommendation:
Reporting Accurate and Timely Information in ARIES ~ Incorrect Information

20 CFR 683.300 states in part:
(d) Performance reports. (1) States must submit an annual performance report for
each of the core workforce programs administered under WIOA as required by sec.
116 (d) of the WIOA and in accordance with part 677, subpart A of this chapter.

20 CFR 677.240 states in part:

(a) States must establish procedures, consistent with guidelines issued by the
Secretary of Labor or the Secretary of Education, to ensure that they submit
complete annual performance reports that contain information that is valid and
reliable, as required by WIOA sec 116 (d}(5).

OAC 5101:9-30-04(A) states:
The following entities will ensure accurate reporting of local Workforce Innovation and
Opportunity Act (WIOA) participants, activities, financial and performance information to
ODIJFS
(1) Chief elected officials as defined by section 3(9) of WIOA.
(2) The local workforce development board, as established by section 107 of WIOA.
(3) The OhioMeanslobs center operator, the provider of career services, and the
provider of youth services identified in section 107(d)(10) of WIOA.
(4) The fiscal agent as established in section 107(d)(12)(B)(i)(1l) of WIOA.

We reviewed two in-school (CCMEP TANF/WIOA) and eight out-of-school (CCMEP WIOA) youth
files in Brown County to verify and validate the case file information against what was reported
in

WE(I A proud partner of American Job Center network

o
W Locations: Adams County Brown County Pike County Scioto County
19221 St. Rt. 136 406 W. Plum Street 941 Market Street 433 Third Street

"w\/f Winchester, OH 45697 Georgetown, OH 45121  Piketon, OH 45661 Portsmouth, OH 45662
OhioMeansJobs. 937-695-0316 937-795-0316 740-289-2371 740-354-7544
800-233-7891 800-553-7393 Ext 261

Adams, Brown, Pike & Scioto Countles

A proud partner of the
American Job Conter netwark



determined that of the case files reviewed, three out-of-school and two in-school youth files
had errors or did not contain accurate and timely information in ARIES. The following issues
were noted during the case file review:

o One out-of-school (CCMEP WIOA) case file had an Occupational Skills Training (OST)
service that was still active in ARIES at the time the case report was downloaded on
3/20/2025, but the case file had a completion certificate dated 1/9/2025 and a case
note dated 1/13/2025 that stated the certificate was received.

o One out-of-school (CCMEP WIOA) case file had a Supportive Service for a car repair
(with an actual start date of 11/5/2024), but the service was still open at the time of the
review.

o One out-of-school (CCMEP WIOA) case file had five open Supportive Services (with
actual start dates of 9/1/2022, 4/17/2023, 8/1/2023, 9/1/2023, 9/9/2023, and
10/3/2023) that were still open at the time of the review. In addition, three of the open
Supportive Services were for the same type of service.

o One in-school (CCMEP TANF/WIOA) case file had a Supportive Service for tires with an
actual start date of 6/5/2024, but the service was still active at the time of the review.

o One in-school (CCMEP TANF/WIOQA) case file had a two, open Supportive Services (with
actual start dates of 10/24/2023 and 9/25/2024) that were provided, but were still
active at the time of the review.

Recommendation

The participant file and ARIES record should be revised and/or updated to reflect the
appropriate status and accurate and complete case information. The local area and lead agency
should work with the service provider to ensure they have a clear understanding of the data
and reporting requirements and the need for accuracy and timeliness. The local area and lead
should develop controls and procedures to ensure participants are properly assessed and
enrolled in the correct program. All case information needs to be accurately reported and
properly documented in the case. The local area and lead agency should include a review for
these elements during their internal monitoring and reviews of service providers.

2. Underlying Cause:

The underlying cause of the issue is linked to the transition from the Ohio Workforce Case
Management System (OWCMS) to the ARIES platform, which coincided with the rollout of
updated policies. This dual shift created challenges for staff as they learned new system
functions while simultaneously adjusting to revised procedures. The basis for this conclusion is
supported by staff feedback, documented inconsistencies in case records, and the timing of the
observed issues, all of which align with the system and policy transition period. While these
findings highlight areas requiring improvement, they also reflect the natural learning curve
associated with implementing new technology and compliance measures. Moving forward, the



plan will emphasize corrective action through targeted training, clear guidance, and ongoing
technical support to both ensure compliance with policy and equip staff with the confidence
and skills to operate effectively within ARIES.

3. Implementation Steps:
The following process will be implemented for the Case Management Team to follow. We
will also be reviewing this periodically.

Monthly File Review & Closure Process for Career Specialists

L\ Ongoing Reminder

Always close completed services immediately after the service is delivered.

The monthly file review serves as a safety net to catch any services that may have been
overlooked.

Monthly Workflow
Step 1: File Review
¢« When: First week of each month

» Who: Case managers
s What: Review open services on ISPs or IOPs
o Goal: Identify any services that were completed but not yet closed

Step 2: Document Completion
¢ By: Second Friday of the month

e What: Update the IOP/ISP

Step 3: Submit to MIS
o By: Third Monday of the month

e How: turn in updated IOP/ISP to MIS
4. Resource Needs:
No additional resources are needed.
5. Implementation Schedule:
Case Management and Management Information System (MIS) team completed the initial file
review process training on August 20t, 2025, and will review it periodically as refresher

training. The file review and closure process form is filed in our digital workflow database,
utilized by all staff.



6. Person Responsible for Implementation:

The OMJ Adams Brown Director and Assistant Director conducted the meeting with the Case
Management and MIS Team.

Signed:
‘j\‘fu L 1\ Qﬁﬂ & Aeatzn
~Name —
Reoon 0o Sob and Tl Services WDB 1/Director
Lead Agency Director Workforce Development Board/Title
9 \ 9 l >% 09/10/2025

Date Date



Improper file documentation could lead to questions regarding eligibility and appropriateness
of services. Including other participant information into another’s case file could result in
incorrect information being used to make decisions and it creates the potential for a breech in
confidentiality and protected information.

Recommendation

Documents and case notes must be maintained in the participant’s file which accurately
document the required information as outlined, along with any additional information
necessary to adequately document the history of the case. The local area and lead agency
should develop a policy, procedure, or protocol to ensure all participant eligibility and case
history is documented and the case file only contains that participant’s information.

2. Underlying Cause:

A tracking document was inadvertently left in a file while the Career Specialist was monitoring
tuition payments for participants’ ITAs. The Management Information System (MIS) team didn’t
discover the ill-placed document during their file reviews.

3. Implementation Steps:

The MIS and Career Specialist Teams will be trained to emphasize the importance of properly
maintaining and securing tracking forms at all times.

4. Resource Needs:

No additional resources are required. A training video will be developed and shared with all
staff.

5. Implementation Schedule:

8/20/2025 — Conducted training meeting with MIS Team and the Career Specialist

8/20/2025 — 9/30/2025-Share training video with all staff.

6. Person Responsible for Implementation:

The OMJ Adams Brown Director and Assistant Director conducted the training meeting with the

Management Information System (MIS) team and the Career Specialist. They will also review
the training video with all staff members.



Signed:

)& ALL?V HA @Q_Qﬂﬂ &;{ﬁ@cﬁ AReaten

Name Nanfe

Bromn Q,h oo m\ Fﬂmllg Servk*’s WDB 1/Director

Lead Agency Director Workforce Development Board/Title
Q\o\\‘ 35 09/10/2025

Dafe Date



4057-A Gallia Pike
Franklin Furnace, OH 45629
(740) 259-6943

Workforce Development Board Area 1

Crystal Keaton, Director
Holly Johnson, Board Chair

www.omjwdal.org

May 5, 2025

To: Debora Plymail, Director OhioMeansJobs Adams/Brown County

From: Dwayne Alexander, Business Manager Workforce Development Area #1
CC: Crystal Keaton, Director Workforce Development Area #1

Subject: Monitoring Review Adams and Brown County

Monitoring for Dislocated Worker, Fresh Start and Car Repair Programs have been completed. No
issues nor findings at this time. Please let the staff working with these participants know the files

were well put together and efficient for monitoring.

Locations: Adams County Brown County

g..\f 19221 St. Rt. 136 406 W. Plum Street
Winchester, OH 45697  Georgetown, OH 45121
OhioMeansJobs.
937-695-0316 937-795-0316
adams, Brown, Pike & Scinto Counties 800-233-7891 800-553-7393 Ext 261

A proud partne: of the
Amecan Jjob Cemier Arwork

r\'/] A proud partner of American Job Center network

Pike County

941 Market Street
Piketon, OH 45661

740-289-2371

Scioto County

433 Third Street
Portsmouth, OH 45662

740-354-7544



Workforce Development Board Area 1

4057-A Gallia Pike Crystal Keaton, Director
Franklin Furnace, OH 45629 Holly Johnson, Board Chair
(740) 259-6943

www.omjwdal.org

May 5, 2025

To: Lisa Pfeifer, Director GhioMeansJobs Pike County

From: Dwayne Alexander, Business Manager Workforce Development Area #1
CC: Crystal Keaton, Director Workforce Development Area #1

Subject: Monitoring Review Pike County

Monitoring for Dislocated Worker, Fresh Start and Car Repair Programs have been completed. Files
were well put together and efficient for monitoring. The following findings were noted during the
monitoring.

Jacob Shanks Unable to find ISP in participant file
Unable to find Citizenship Status form in participant file

Corrective Action Required within 14 days. Copies of required ISP and
proof of citizenship status to be entered into the customer file and

copies sent to WDB1’s monitor. Corgutad @ q ’z 25"
S e
Brenton King Unable to find ISP in participant file.

Participant eligibility did not contain WIQOA Adult enrollment.

Corrective Action Required within 14 days. Copies of required ISP and
Eligibility’s WIOA Adult enrollment to be entered into the customer file
and copies sent to WDB 1's monitor. ;Dbd,g_&@ 9ales

M A proud partner of American Job Center network
L
WI Locations: Adams County Brown County Pike County Sciato County

w/ 19221 St. Rt. 136 406 W. Plum Street 941 Market Street 433 Third Street
Winchester, OH 45697  Georgetown, OH 45121  Piketon, OH 45661 Portsmouth, OH 45662
OhioMeansJobs.
937-695-0316 937-795-0316 740-289-2371 740-354-7544
adoms, Brown, Pike & Sciato Counties 800-233-7891 800-553-7393 Ext 261

A proud pariner of the
Amencan job Crnter netwnie




Workforce Development Board Area 1

4057-A Gallia Pike Crystal Keaton, Director
Franklin Furnace, OH 45629 Holly Johnson, Board Chair
(740) 259-6943

www.omjwdal.org

May 5, 2025

To: Luanne Valentine, Director OhioMeansJobs.Scioto County

From: Dwayne Alexander, Business Manager Workforce Development Area #1
CC: Crystal Keaton, Director Workforce Development Area #1

Subject: Monitoring Review Scioto County

Monitoring for Dislocated Worker, Fresh Start and Car Repair Programs have been completed. The
following finding was noted during the monitoring.

Bethany Raby Participant file unorganized. Loose documents need to be secured in file.

Corrective Action: Within the next 30 days the file needs to be organized
and then ongoingly properly maintained. OMJ Sciote.to nofify WDB 1
once corrective action is completed. QM.;, L (CL) Y2/

—_—

M A proud partner of American Job Center network
e

(B Locations: Adams County Brown County Pike County Scioto County
‘-‘/" 19221 St. Rt. 136 406 W. Plum Street 941 Market Street 433 Third Street
Winchester, OH 45697  Georgetown, OH 45121  Piketon, OH 45661 Portsmouth, OH 45662
OhioMeansJobs.
937-695-0316 937-795-0316 740-289-2371 740-354-7544
Adams, Brawn, Plke & Sciota Countivs 800-233-7891 800-553-7393 Ext 261

Agiaud partner of the
Amerxsi sob Cenlot nelworn




W{] Workforce Development Area 1
. Adams, Brown, Pike & Scioto Counties
w/ A proud partner of the American Job Center Network
OhioMeansJobs.

Type of Monitoring: Adult & Youth Program
Monitoring Date: April 2025
County: OhioMeansJobs Adams Brown Counties Monitor: Michelle Cutlip/ Sarah Carver

Contact Person: Debora Plymail, Director of OhioMeansJobs Adams Brown Counties. Susan Huff,
Assistant Director of OhioMeansJobs Adams Brown Counties

Report: File Monitoring Summary

Monitoring Activity:
The following participant files were monitored:

e Jennah Easterling (Adult)

o Lakota Croghan (Adult)

e Christin Scaff (Youth)

e Malaki Raines (Youth)

e Silvia Sage Black (Adult)
e Tierra Sroufe (Adult)

e Adam Swartz (Adult)

e Michelle Mahaffey (Adult)
o Dakota Bolender (Youth)

e Tehya Dryden (Youth)

o Mariah Weaver Whitaker (Youth)

Findings:
All reviewed files have been thoroughly examined. No findings or discrepancies were
identified during the monitoring process.

Jlehidb LoD 5zfs

Signature of Monitor & []*\'.iy




o l Workforce Development Area 1
w/ . Adams, Brown, Pike & Scioto Counties

A proud partner of the American Job Center Network

OhioMeansJobs
Type of Monitoring: Adult & Youth Program
Monitoring Date: May 2025
County: OhioMeansJobs Pike County Monitor: Michelle Cutlip/ Sarah Carver

Contact Person: Lisa Pfeifer, Director of OhioMeansJobs Pike County

Report: File Monitoring Summary

Monitoring Activity:
The following participant files were monitored:

» Seth Garrison

e Sheridan Ison

e Jonathan Carpenter
e Keith Leeth Jr.

e Brooklyn Fletcher
e Cheyanna Music

e Charles Fyffe

¢ Emma Henderson

Findings:
All reviewed files have been thoroughly examined. No findings or
discrepancies were identified during the monitoring process.

/ / it L 5awhs

Sign ture of Monitor & [) te




M Workforce Development Area 1

: Adams, Brown, Pike & Scioto Counties

\-'\/ A proud partner of the American Job Center Network
OhioMeansJobs.

Type of Monitoring: Adult & Youth Program
Monitoring Date: May 2025
County: OhioMeansJobs Scioto County Monitor: Michelle Cutlip/ Sarah Carver

Contact Person: Luanne Valentine, Director of OhioMeansJobs Scioto County

Report: File Monitoring Summary

Monitoring Activity:
The following participant files were monitored:

» Lance Rand

e Andrea Chalfan

o Deborah Rideout

» Bryce Borders

e Faith Newman Curtis
e Austin Haney

e Steven Miller

e James Keaton

Findings:

All reviewed files have been thoroughly examined. No findings or
discrepancies were identified during the monitoring process. However, it is
suggested to double-check applications to ensure all required signatures are
present and to maintain up-to-date case notes consistently.

IMpdidtlb S 5hafee

§1gnature of Monitor & Dat




Federal Workforce Development Legislative Update

The past 30 days have seen significant developments in federal workforce policy discussions that
may impact local workforce development board structures and WIOA Adult, Dislocated Worker,
and Youth Programs.

The primary focus has been on competing visions for the future of workforce development
funding and program structure. The Trump Administration has proposed substantial changes
through its FY26 budget proposal, while Congressional leaders continue to work on WIOA
reauthorization efforts separate from the administration's approach.

Key Points from Recent Federal Discussions:

Make America Skilled Again (MASA) Block Grant Proposal: The Trump
Administration's FY26 budget proposal introduces a significant consolidation of
workforce programs into a single "Make America Skilled Again" (MASA) grant. This
would replace specific WIOA Titles and consolidate funding for programs including
YouthBuild, reentry employment programs, migrant and seasonal farmworkers
initiatives, and apprenticeship funding.

Senate Opposition to MASA Consolidation: The Senate Appropriations Committee has
rejected the MASA block grant approach in its F'Y26 bill, instead opting to maintain
separate funding categories for workforce programs, generally at amounts close to
previous year levels.

Performance Dashboard Launch: On August 13, 2025, the Department of Labor
launched a new performance dashboard providing transparency into the effectiveness of
WIOA Adult, Youth, and Dislocated Worker programs across over 550 local workforce
development boards nationwide.

Perkins and WIOA Title II Administrative Changes: The Supreme Court recently
cleared the way for the administration of Perkins and WIOA Title II adult education and
literacy programs to move from the Department of Education to the Department of Labor,
raising concerns about administrative confusion and potential program disruptions.
Workforce Pell Implementation: Progress continues on implementing the "Workforce
Pell” provision from the reconciliation bill, which will expand Pell Grant eligibility to
students enrolled in certain short-term postsecondary programs. This could significantly
impact how workforce training is funded.

Local Workforce Board Structure Concerns: Workforce development professionals
have expressed concerns about proposals that could undermine the current locally-driven
workforce system by shifting more authority to state governors without clear guidelines
for ensuring funds reach all communities.

While bipartisan interest in WIOA reform persists, the specific direction of reauthorization
remains uncertain as we navigate competing visions for the future of workforce development.



¥6v6°ZSL vT9 | noBo1yosi@IWTIdeIu0) toppiooven I M

GZ0T ‘6T-ST 19qwardas sedINIRS Qm\
¥o9Mm uonenaiddy uoidnisuo) hoﬁ_.__.“.ﬂmuum A

*W03°|WT01YO UO SUOIIIBI01d JUSWAOC)dWT A1ISNpU| 210W PUl4 *SIPOI SIYN UOIIINIISUOD 3173]3s smoys ydeus sy :910N

|1|..1I|||l|l..!.n..
ecansnn= T .-.J ___

juswAhojdw3z paosfoid-zeozm  JuawAhojdw3 zzoz m

NOILONYLSNOD 39019 ANY ONIaTIngd ONIdTINg
AAV3IH 43HLO ‘13341S ‘AYMHOIH W3LSAS ALITILN AVILNIQIS3Y IVILN3AISTY-NON

9Z5‘6C

Z€0T-TZ0oT suoiydafoad yusawAojdwy
Axysnpuj uoidNIISu0) s,014yo0




Wwod'|N101y0

v6v6°TSL YT9 | N03 01yo s DN TIdeIU0)
ibuinow sbuiyy daay oym o1y $s0.420 SISALIP }on) Y3 03 hoA yuby|

(bzoT) sonsneys adem pue Juswiojdwy jeuonednidQ
pue (z€02Z-7Z0Z) suolldafoad yuawAojdw3 jeuonnednidg :$321n0s

e ATES }8S$ adeM jenuuy ueipapn

me 16Zy IyoT sSuiuadQ jenuuy jejoL

/ %IT'L %09°'E aSuey) juadiad |
788‘0b €L6°00T yuswojdwz pardafoid zeot
L9T‘8E 09¥°L6 Juswhojdwy zzoz

SA9ALIQ YINJL SA3ALIQ YINAL ejeq JusawAhojdwy
W31 A9]lea1-10)de4] pue AnedH

A1we4 13 qor

mNoN,oN-SE@_Eﬂ%m ms_aam._ u\f@ \
YoM uoijedaiddy JaA11q YonaL jo Juswipiedag _\/m_Nv




N8-2'€0Z S¥ 6202/62/L 992€y shquinjod
uonewlou| 1oxJel JogeT Jo neaing
JuawdojdAad 8210/I0AA JO 3210

$80IMSS Allue4 pue qor o Juswyedsqg olyo

‘0lyO spisino

pauonels sashojdwa juswiuianob jo sebem (ol ‘AJUnod Ag S|geyISSElD Jou S1e pue ‘oY apPISINO aseq & o) Yodal oym ‘olyQ Ul pakojdwe sIaxIom Jo sabem |ejo} sapnjoul alels Jo 1D
() ‘seuabe JusawuIanog) [B1epa Auo sepnjoul (p) ANenuapyuod Joj passaiddng (o) ‘salousbe JUSILISADD) [B1apa SBPNIOXS ING ‘SANIUS JUSWIUISA0D [BD07] PUE Sje]S I0}08S 8jeAld
ay) sapniou| "Bulpunol Jo asneoaq 1o siekojdwa 831y} UBY) JOMS) YIM SSLISNpUl 850U} JO UOISN|OXa 8U) JO 9SNBOS] SUOISIAIP |elisnpul Jo wns ay) [enba jou Aew Alunoo yoes pue aje)s
By} 10} S[EJ0IGNS pUE S[EJ0} pawwng (q) '§20z ‘L Mdy ybBnoiy) uonewlou| 193I. I J0geT JO Nesing au) Ul PaAladal $Z0g JouenD yuno4 Joj spodal siakojdwa uodn paseq ‘Aeuiwipld ()

662'6¢ 120°C Z90°L LLFL 1£6'6 £60°C obb'L 0zL'L 888 169'056°L (p) JudWIUIBA0Y) [RIBPRS
les'sy 626'6C ¥28'91 966'92 861'G6 906'GH 985'0l ovl'Le ¥89'cl 86£'G60'8 JUBLUUIBAOD) [EO0T]
Zro'LE €16'2 118'C £25'1 peE'LL £¥1'0€ 16¥'L L'y £0. 896'GE6'C JUSWILIBAO0Y) ).l
£96'vL FA XA Lr9‘sl 6.b'82 268901 6v0°9L £p0‘8l 168'SZ 188V) 99¢£°166°01 JUSWIUIAA0S) [B207 @ A)EIS
z8L'y 0z6't €Ol P8P'T 0.G'v2 G9l's 89¢'L ¥oL'z 260} 796'806°L uonensiuiwpe 2dlgnd 1daoxs ‘saoiaLes 18Ul0
8/9'/1 z8.'s v/G'Y £8L'y ore'zy vGl'el ) ovL't 1.€'c 109'G68'C S9OIAISS POO) PUE UOIBPOLULIOIIY
9/8 0ce r44) 209 £00'Z 609 (0) Gep 98¢ LEY'E60'L uofealdal pue ‘JUaWulelsIus ‘suy
16¥'001 L€6'LY (©) €l1'91 62v'26 G9Z'6Z1 ) LIv'YL (@) LIp'SrLE) SOUR)SISSE [BI00S pUE 818D Y)[eaH
0£0'2 elerd (0) g6t 9eL'y 1€G') ) Y24 1)) 0.5'0SL°L S9JIAISS |euolleoNp3
082'L Ge0'z GZ8'v 1612 ¥6G'SS 189'G €9¥'L9 ¥82'S G62'L ££8'c£8'C S9OIAISS B)SEM puR SANBSILILIPY
$98'¢c KA (o) 6.8 0€2'2L 1181 (0) (0) ) GL0'€l9'y sosiidisjua pue sejuedwod jo Juswabeuey
£LL'S 02’ (o) 1151 18€'19 $20'2 (0) (@) ) Ly¥'0£8'2 SOIAISS |E2IUYIS) pUE [BUOISSD)0.d
920'2 6Ze'T Gl6 L¥8 PeL'EL £69'C gLl 2.9 19V 816'002°L Buises) pue |ejual pue sje)sd |eaYy
911'6 00£'2 £62'C 902'9 LOY'0S 660'9 LiL'Y £€28'2 £ob'e G/6'950'9 adueINSUl pue soueul
Le2'e €16 620'L v8. G/L'6Y rANAL ¥8g GGS 8£9 286'8v9'L uoneuou|
$92'81 6ES'LL 80¥'Z €1e'e 1G8'c9 696'G 78€'9 (o) 6601 891L'IYL'y Buisnoyasem pue uoneuodsuel]
9/6'vE 88821 GG6'6 osy'sl $86'G8 vLz've L€2'9 ££6'8 656'9 269'8.2'S apel} lej9y
G8v'0l 9756'2 902'2 LLL'Y 298'LY 189 (0) 169'2 PSP'e 998'26.'S apel) a|esaloupn
0,0'88 oz'LL 612'se ¥8.1'12 066'GL 1 690'GZ 668'6 olz'LlL 00G'61 ysz'zov'sl Buunioesnuepy
vor'cl $8s'LL rAARA) 0/¥'LL z.0'9L 8ve‘ol voz'zl 659't el ) 16Z2'608'G uonINIsU0Y
L8L'Y £ob'y gL'l 9z9'L 6¥9'9 1822 ) (0) 91zZ'L Z91'96G sanN
(R4 (o) 192 115 (9) (9) (0) (9) (0) 1GO'261L Buluin
999 (o) £8Pl L9/ (0) (0) (9) (0) (9) 196'¥12 Bununy pue Buysy 'Ansaio) ‘ainynouby
628'92¢ 8ZbZel 8S¥°001 886°L6 890°818 GLL L2 6SL°2LS1 850'v9 SSv'LL 10Z'96£°L8 10193g ajeAlld
zec'Lovs  |oc6'pb9LS [6200ZV$  |L9¥°9ZL$  |096'vZ6$  |v9r'czed  [28L'SZLS  |S16°68% Zrs8‘16$ 196°18¢£°76$ (q) meT DN 0IYO Japun paIdanod [ejo|
sSOY ajuaimen uosyoer puejybiy juound|d 0)0198 Mid umoug swepy olIyo 101998 jeuysnpu| SOIVN

(e) fyunoo pue 403298 [euIsNpuU] (SOIVN) WalsAg uoneayisse|n Alysnpuj uesuawy Yuon Aq

sme] uonesuadwos Juawhojdwaun [eiapa4 pue olyQO ayj} Japun palaro) se

(Areuiwnjaid) $z0oz 1auend yuno4

(stejjop jo spuesnoy) uy) sabepp |ejoL

olyo jo |ners




Ng-1'€0Z S G20¢/6¢/. 99¢Ey shquinjod

uoNEBULIOJU| 18MJE JogeT Jo nealng
JuswdojaAsg 99I0POAA JO 92140
s991M98 AjlweS pue gor jo Juswipedsq olyO

"0IyQ BPISINO pauoiels

soako|dwa JuswLIaA0B Jo Jaquinu |ejo} ‘Alunod AQ S|qelISSED 10U 8Je pue ‘OjyQ SpISINO aseq e o} Lodal oym 'Ol Ul pakojdwia s1eNIOM JO 1aquinu [E}0} Sapnjoul Slels Jo N0 (o)
‘sa10uabe JUBLILISAOL) [B1opa Aluo sapnpu) (p) Aljenuapiuod Joy passarddng (0) "salouabe JuawuIan0s) [elapad S8PNIOXe NG ‘SajUS JUSLULIBAOY |BD0T PUE BjBIS “10J08S dleAlld
ay} sapnjou] BuIpuNol Jo asnesaq Jo siakojdwa 83y} UBY} JOMa) U)IM SBIISNPUI 9S0U) JO UOISN|OXa 8Y) JO SSNEDSQ SUOISIAIP |BLISNPU} JO WNS 8y} [enba jou Aew Ajunod yoea pue sjels sy}
10} SIEIOIGNS pUE S[EI0) pawiwng (q) 'SZoz 'L Iudy YBnoayl uonewwioju| JaxIely 10geT JO NeaIng Sy} Ul paAIsdal $Z0Z JaUend yuno 1oy suodas siekojdwa uodn paseq ‘Alieuiwijaid (e)

292°) €1 zL 16 £eP r41) 15 £ol 59 62568 (p) 3uawuIan0L) [RIBpa]
9ge's 0862 8/¢'L Z81'2 6¥€'9 EEP'E 182'1 88l L6LL £66'225 JUBLILIBAOY) |BOOT
LLv'L oL ZEL L6 108 986G'L 88 e £p 86€'LEL JUSWWISAOS) 31B1S
€SLY 9212 0LSL £22°C 9612 610'S Gl£°L 9/0°C [z d) 1L66'v99 JUSWILIAAOD) [2207] R djE1S
A% G/€ 9/l 00¢g 1902 196 LGL 862 Gl 02.'6G1 uoneJsiuiwpe alqnd }deoxs ‘s8dIAIs 18UID
ozL'e GLZ'L 880°L L00°L SO¥'L 1962 (0) ¥66 8GS vG1'QLY S9DIAJSS POOJ PUE UONEPOWILUODDY
GGl o Ly o8 €00l GLL ) €01 8e y/€'18 UO[}ea10al pue 'JUSWURUBIUS ‘SHUY
¥61'S cov's () 162'L 0£8'9 0zL'6 ) 192'L (0) 990'798 souejsisse [e100S pue aieod y)esH
961 96 (o) v6 66 091 (@) ¥9 ) 906'/6 S80IAISS [BUONEONPT
816 602 414 862 0€L'e veG v2z'e 861 S¥e z9z's6e S90IAIOS S]SEM PUEB SANBNSIUILIPY
Ll 08 )] o74 6ES L6 (@ () 6o)] GE6'LPL sosudialus pue saluedwod Jo Juswabeuey
LvE Le o)) 121 8897 rdi @) ) © 00%'682 S90IAJSS [BOIUYOS] PUE |BUOISSSJ0Id
85l 291 69 L2 626 €Lz 8G £G (K% 110'0.L Buises| pue |ejus) pue sjejse [eay
667 681 9/l 1€ rLE'C 11€ GGz vl 661 18¥'1€2 8ouUBINSUl pue aouRUI4
861 Z6 41} 09 cLzZ'L G/l 1574 9z ve 081'G9 uonew.ou|
Zve'L 6€8 6.1 502 2.6'¢ 18P $0. () 69 8¥9°'192 Buisnoyalem pue uonepodsuel |
$98'¢ 204 LLEL 169'1 202'6 G¥1'e ovo'L 6€0'L 198 01£'0SS apel} |le1oy
1€9 1GL Ll GlE 186'L #GE (0) L6l 9¢e Gl1'6€2 apeJ) 9|BSaJoYAA
¥.G'y £60'L 6LY'C £/6'1 10G'9 z86'1L yz8 00Z 18 2.2'819 Buunmoenuey
29, 066 189 44 ££6'E 619 18G 6.2 £05 1E¥'962 uoNdNIISUOD
6.1 8¢l €5 09 Sle 68 (0) (9) yA4 61581 =D
gl (0) 61l 62 ()] (0) )] 0 (o)) 60.'8 Buuin
69 (0) 8Ll 99 (0) (0) (o) (9) () 986'61 Bununy pue Bulysy ‘Ansalo) ‘aimnouby
19822 62601 TR 1£9°8 GZ8'vS 602°02 o¥Z'e L18's 629°S £9g°ZI8'Y 10)99¢G aleAlld
02922 659°ClL #9001 01601 186°L9 8z2'se G190 188°L 658°9 vSe LIPS (q) me1 2N o1yO J19puUn palarod [eyo|
SSOY 9d%uaimen uosyoer _ucm_:m__._ juouwdn 0}0128 Nid umolg swepy oiyo 10309¢G |eujsnpu] SOIVYN

(e) fjunosH pue J0joag elysnpu] (SOIVYN) waysAg uonesyisse|d Alsnpuj uesuawy YuonN Aq
sme] uonesuadwod yJuswhojdwaun [e1dpad pue olyQ ayj} Japun paidao) se
yuswojdwz Apepeny abeiany

(Areuyunjaid) $20z 1914end Yypno4

oIyO Jo aje)g




WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD #1
Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act
(WIOA)

Strategic Plan

Area #1
Adams, Brown, Pike and Scioto Counties
2026-2030

.

a7

-------



Table of Contents

I. Regional Plan Overview

Il. Regional Labor Market Information and Analysis
Ill. Regional Strategies

IV. Local Plan - Workforce Development Area #1

V. Assurances

VI. Signature Page



I. Regional Plan Overview

The Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act of 2014 required the state to submit a four-year
(2026-2030) Regional Plan to the Department of Labor.

The State of Ohio identified planning regions, which identified Workforce Development Area #1
(WDA #1) as being a stand-alone region.

WDA #1 covers Adams, Brown, Pike and Scioto Counties.

The following regional plan outlines a comprehensive strategic plan for WDA #1, which
emphasizes how we will proceed in building a workforce development system that is:

e Customer focused on both the jobseeker and business-focused
* Able to anticipate and respond to the needs of regional economies

WDB #1

The Workforce Development Board (WDB #1) in Area #1, covering Adams, Brown, Pike and
Scioto Counties, is a regional organization with a 51% business membership and the remaining
membership from labor, education and training, disabilities, veterans, youth organizations,
Wagner-Peyser. The WDB#1 oversees the operations of the four OhioMeansJobs (OMJ) Centers
in Adams, Brown, Pike and Scioto Counties. Each of the centers provide businesses with
practical and easy solutions for their workforce needs; work with employers, education and
workforce partners to seamlessly bridge the skills gap; and develop workforce solutions for
customers of the OMIJ Centers.



Il. Regional Labor Market Information and Analysis

1. Regional Analysis of Economic Conditions and Employment Needs

Demographics

County Population Median Age Under 18 25-44 years 45-64 years 65+ years

Adams 27,396 42.1 6,691 6,351 7,780 4,856
Brown 43,572 40.8 10,014 10,184 12,299 7,900
Pike 28,000 39.9 6,501 6,674 7,812 1,915
Scioto 76,040 39.9 16,590 19,132 20,179 13,526

Economic Conditions

The regional economy continues to experience transition from traditional industries toward
emerging sectors. Healthcare and social assistance represent the largest growth opportunities,
while advanced manufacturing and technology-enabled remote work provide emerging

pathways for economic development.

Unemployment Rates (2024 Annual Average)

County Unemployment Rate Statewide Rank

Adams 6.0% 4
Brown 5.0% 19
Pike 5.4% 11
Scioto 5.8% 8

The regional average unemployment rate of 5.55% demonstrates continued economic
challenges, with three of four counties ranking in the top 11 statewide for unemployment. This
aligns with state-identified patterns of higher unemployment in Appalachian counties.

Civilian Labor Force (2024)

County Labor Force Employed Unemployed
Adams 10,995 10,396 599

Brown 20,663 19,654 1,009

Pike 11,216 10,496 720

Scioto 30,331 28,010 2,321

In-Demand Industry Sectors and Occupations



Based on analysis of regional job postings and alignment with Ohio's in-demand jobs list, key
sectors include:

Healthcare and Social Assistance

e Registered Nurses

e Medical Assistants

e Certified Nursing Assistants
e Home Health Aides

Transportation and Warehousing

e Commercial Driver's License holders (25.1% of regional job ads)
e Logistics and supply chain workers

Manufacturing
e Production workers
e Quality control inspectors
e Maintenance technicians
Accommodation and Food Services
e Food service workers
o Hospitality staff
e Customer service representatives
Employment Needs of Employers
Analysis through our Business Resource Network identifies critical employer needs:

Essential Certifications

e Commercial Driver's License (25.1% of job ads)
e Healthcare certifications (CPR, CNA, LPN)

e OSHA safety certifications

e Food handling certifications

Core Skills

o Digital literacy and computer skills

e Customer service and communication
e Problem-solving abilities

¢ Reliability and work readiness



2. Analysis of the Regional Workforce

Educational Attainment (Population 25 years and over)

County Total Pop 25+ HS Graduate+ Bachelor's+ Some College, No Degree

Adams 18,784 15,997 (85.2%) 2,677 (14.2%) 2,963 (15.8%)
Brown 30,555 26,817 (87.8%) 4,821 (15.8%) 5,187 (17.0%)
Pike 18,589 15,913 (85.6%) 2,706 (14.6%) 2,477 (13.3%)
Scioto 50,933 45,172 (88.7%) 9,143 (17.9%) 9,868 (19.4%)
Regional Total 118,861 103,899 (87.4%) 19,347 (16.3%) 20,495 (17.2%)

The regional high school graduation rate of 87.4% falls below the state average of 91.1%.
Bachelor's degree attainment at 16.3% is significantly below the state average of 29.7%,
reflecting the 12.7 percentage point gap identified in the state plan for Appalachian regions.

Individuals with Barriers to Employment
The workforce area serves significant populations with employment barriers:
Educational Barriers

e 12,962 adults (10.9%) lack high school credentials

¢ Limited access to post-secondary education

e Geographic barriers to training opportunities
Economic Barriers

o High poverty rates, particularly among youth and families

e Limited transportation infrastructure

e Childcare access challenges
Recovery and Justice-Involved Populations

e Individuals in recovery from substance use disorder

e Justice-involved individuals requiring reentry services

¢ Integration needed with treatment courts and recovery programs
Veterans and Military Families

e Veteran population requiring specialized services

o Military spouses facing employment barriers
e Need for skills translation and credential recognition



3. Analysis of Workforce Development Activities
Strengths and Weaknesses of Workforce Development Activities

Strengths
The WDB #1 operates a comprehensive workforce development system with the following
strengths:

e Four OMJ Centers ensuring geographic accessibility across the region

® Business Resource Network (BRN) of over 50 partners providing coordinated services

* GRIT Project (Growing Rural Independence Together) demonstrating innovation and
scalability

e Strong educational partnerships including Southern State Community College, Shawnee State
University, and career technical centers

* Proven outcomes in recovery-focused employment services

* Technology integration addressing rural connectivity barriers

Weaknesses
Identified challenges in the regional system include:

e Broadband internet access remains inconsistent across rural areas
¢ Limited public transportation options

e Federal funding uncertainty affecting service capacity

e Geographic barriers to accessing training and services

e Limited post-secondary education options within the region

* Youth out-migration and aging workforce challenges

Alignment of Education and Training Programs

Our education and training system demonstrates strong alignment with employer needs
through:

e Career pathway programs in healthcare, manufacturing, and transportation
¢ Industry-recognized credential programs

e Apprenticeship and pre-apprenticeship opportunities

e Business advisory councils in local school districts

e Customized training contracts meeting specific employer needs

Capacity to Provide Workforce Development Activities

The regional system maintains capacity to serve individuals with barriers to employment
through:



e Comprehensive support services including transportation, childcare, and emergency
assistance

* Trauma-informed service delivery approaches

* Recovery-oriented employment services with documented outcomes

* VVeteran-specific programming and support

® Youth services addressing multiple barriers to employment

Employment Needs of Employers
Regional employers consistently identify needs for:

e Skilled workers with industry-recognized credentials

e Employees with strong work readiness and soft skills

* Workers able to adapt to technological changes

e Reliable workforce with transportation solutions

e Customer service and communication skills across sectors

4. Analysis of Operational Data Measures
The regional service delivery system demonstrates effectiveness through operational measures:

Customer Engagement

Despite pandemic-related disruptions, OMJ Centers maintain consistent customer traffic and
engagement across all four counties. Virtual service delivery capabilities developed during
COVID-19 have enhanced access and will continue post-pandemic.

Partnership Effectiveness

The Business Resource Network generates measurable outcomes for employers while providing
comprehensive services to job seekers. Cross-agency coordination through MOUs maximizes
resource utilization and minimizes service duplication.

Performance Context

Operational data must be viewed within the context of serving high-barrier populations in
economically distressed rural areas. Regional unemployment rates consistently 2-3 percentage
points above state averages and educational attainment gaps require intensive intervention
strategies.



Ill. Regional Strategies

1. Shared Regional Strategy to Align Available Resources

WDB #1 will implement a shared regional strategy that maximizes coordination among core
programs and required partners to achieve optimal resource utilization and service delivery.

Resource Alignment Framework

The regional strategy centers on our proven Business Resource Network model, which
coordinates over 50 partners to provide seamless service delivery. This approach eliminates
duplication while ensuring comprehensive support for both job seekers and employers.

Core Program Integration

e WIOA Title | Adult and Dislocated Worker programs
e WIOA Title | Youth/CCMEP programs

e WIOA Title Il Adult Education and Literacy (ASPIRE)
* Wagner-Peyser Employment Services

e Vocational Rehabilitation Services (OOD)

* VVeterans programs and services

Required Partner Coordination

e Carl D. Perkins Career and Technical Education programs

* TANF Employment Programming

e Community Services Block Grant programs

e Unemployment Insurance programs

e Senior Community Service Employment Programs (VANTAGE)
e Trade Adjustment Assistance coordination

* Reintegration of Ex-Offenders programs

Leveraging Technology and Data

The regional strategy emphasizes technology integration to create efficiencies and improve
outcomes:

e Universal access to services through OhioMeansJobs.com registration

* GRIT Project remote work enablement through high-speed internet centers
e Virtual service delivery capabilities for rural accessibility

¢ Integrated data systems (OWCMS, CFIS) for performance tracking

e Mobile wifi and hotspot programs addressing connectivity barriers

2. Support for Combined State Plan Goals and Reform Principles



WDB #1 will directly support Ohio's strategic vision and the four primary goals identified in the
Combined State Plan.

Goal 1: Coordinating Efforts to Reduce Duplication and Maximize Resources

Our regional approach promotes consistency across core program partners while reducing
unnecessary duplication through:

* Single One Stop Operator serving all four counties ensuring consistent messaging and
processes

® Coordinated intake and assessment procedures across all OMJ Centers

® Business Resource Network eliminating duplicative employer outreach

e Shared training resources and provider coordination

e Integrated supportive services delivery

Goal 2: Leveraging Technology and Data to Create Efficiencies
The region demonstrates innovation in technology utilization:

* GRIT Project expansion providing remote work opportunities
* High-speed internet access at all OMJ Centers

e Virtual service delivery and online career exploration tools

e LinkedIn Learning access for all customers

e Technology-enabled intake and case management systems

Goal 3: Deploying Locally Driven Programs that Produce Results
Regional programming responds directly to local economic conditions and employer needs:

® Business Resource Network identifying local labor market demands

e Sector-specific programming in healthcare, manufacturing, and transportation

» Recovery-focused employment services addressing regional substance use challenges
* Youth career navigation through GRIT Project high school partnerships

e Customized training contracts meeting specific employer requirements

Goal 4: Investing in Education and Training for 21st Century Skills
The region supports workforce preparation for emerging industries:

e Career pathway development in in-demand sectors

e Industry-recognized credential attainment

® Apprenticeship and pre-apprenticeship program development
e Digital literacy and remote work skill development

* Incumbent worker training and skills upgrading



3. Joint Regional Service Strategies
Work-Based Training Coordination

The region will implement coordinated policies and requirements for work-based training
opportunities:

On-the-Job Training (OJT)

¢ Standardized contracts reimbursing employers up to 50% of trainee wages
e Maximum 1,040-hour training periods based on skills gap assessment

® Consistent evaluation and monitoring procedures across all counties

e Coordinated employer outreach and contract development

Customized Training

* 50% employer reimbursement for training costs

e Coordinated needs assessment and curriculum development
e Shared training provider networks

e Joint employer engagement strategies

Incumbent Worker Training

* Employer contribution requirements from 10% to 50% based on company size
e Coordinated application and approval processes

e Shared training resources and provider networks

* Regional outcome tracking and evaluation

Individual Training Account (ITA) Coordination
The region will coordinate training services through ITAs using:

* Ohio's Workforce Inventory of Education and Training (WIET) system

e Standardized eligibility and assessment procedures

e Coordinated career counseling and pathway planning

¢ Shared training provider oversight and performance monitoring

» Regional labor market information and career exploration requirements

Cooperative Service Delivery Agreements
All OMJ Centers operate under comprehensive Memoranda of Understanding that establish:

e Coordinated service delivery procedures

® Resource sharing and cost allocation

e Cross-training requirements for staff

e Shared performance accountability

e Integrated referral and follow-up processes



4. Shared Strategies and Mutual Services
Employer Engagement
The Business Resource Network provides coordinated employer engagement across the region:

* Single point of contact through BRN Account Executives

e Customized business solutions drawing from 50+ partner resources

e Coordinated recruitment and hiring events

* Regional rapid response and layoff aversion services

e Shared labor market information and economic development coordination

Business Services Coordination
Standardized business services across all four counties include:

* Job posting and candidate referral services

e Recruitment and pre-screening assistance

e Hiring event coordination and support

e Customized training and skills assessment

e Business consultation and development resources

e Access to economic development and financing resources

Economic Development Coordination
The region coordinates workforce development with economic development through:

e BRN partnership with county economic development organizations

e Participation in regional economic development initiatives

e Coordination with Southern Ohio Port Authority

e Support for business retention and expansion efforts

e Alignment with regional transportation and infrastructure development

Rapid Response Activities

Regional rapid response coordination includes:

e Joint rapid response team with trained staff from all counties
e Coordinated employer outreach and assessment

e Standardized service delivery for affected workers

» Shared resources for retraining and placement

* Regional coordination with state rapid response initiatives

JobsOhio Collaboration



The region will enhance collaboration with JobsOhio through:

e Participation in regional workforce initiatives

e Support for business recruitment and retention efforts

e Coordination with sector-specific workforce strategies

e Shared labor market information and employer intelligence

* Joint employer engagement and business development activities

Education Program Coordination
Regional coordination with secondary and post-secondary education includes:

* GRIT Project career navigation in regional high schools

e Coordination with career technical centers in all four counties

¢ Partnership with Southern State Community College and Shawnee State University
e Adult education and literacy program integration

e Career pathway development from K-12 through post-secondary

WIOA Title Il Coordination
The region coordinates Adult Education and Literacy activities through:

e Joint planning with ASPIRE programs in all four counties

e Integrated service delivery in OMJ Centers

e Coordinated career pathway development

e Shared performance accountability and outcome tracking
e Joint application review process for Title Il providers

OhioMeansJobs and Unemployment Insurance Coordination

Coordination between OMJ Centers and unemployment insurance includes:
e Integrated service delivery for Ul recipients

e Coordinated reemployment services and job search assistance

e Shared labor market information and job matching

e Joint workshops and orientation sessions

e Streamlined referral processes between programs

Priority of Service Implementation

The region ensures consistent priority of service implementation:

» VVeterans and eligible spouses receive first priority
» Recipients of public assistance, low-income individuals, and basic skills deficient individuals



receive priority for adult services

¢ Consistent eligibility determination and service coordination
* Regional training and technical assistance for all staff

¢ Standardized policies and procedures across all OMJ Centers

5. Administrative Coordination

Pooling of Administrative Funds

WDB #1 will coordinate administrative costs across the region through:
e Shared administrative functions where appropriate and cost-effective
e Coordinated procurement processes for common needs

e Joint professional development and training initiatives

e Shared technology and data systems

® Regional coordination of audit and compliance activities
Transportation Coordination

The region addresses transportation barriers through:

e Coordination with public transportation systems where available

e Supportive services funding for transportation assistance

* Mobile service delivery to reduce travel requirements

e Virtual service delivery options

e Partnership with regional transportation planning initiatives
Supportive Services Coordination

Regional coordination of supportive services includes:

* Shared resource identification and referral processes

» Coordinated emergency assistance and crisis intervention

e Joint childcare and dependent care solutions

* Regional housing and shelter coordination
e Integrated financial counseling and assistance services

6. Training Services Coordination
Individual Training Account (ITA) Management

The region will provide coordinated ITA services through:



¢ Standardized ITA policies and procedures across all counties

» Shared training provider oversight and performance monitoring

¢ Coordinated labor market research and career exploration requirements
e Joint training provider recruitment and development

* Regional outcome tracking and evaluation

Training Provider Coordination
Regional training provider management includes:

e Shared eligible training provider list management

e Coordinated provider performance monitoring

e Joint training provider development and recruitment

® Regional training capacity assessment and planning

e Shared resources for training provider technical assistance

7. Public Comment Process

WDB #1 will conduct a comprehensive 30-day public comment process prior to submission of
the regional plan:

Public Notice and Accessibility

* Public notice in newspapers across all four counties

* Plan availability on WDB #1 website and at all OMJ Centers

* Hard copy availability at public libraries and partner locations

* Notice to all Business Resource Network partners and stakeholders

Public Meetings and Input Opportunities

e Public meetings in multiple locations across the region

* Virtual meeting options for increased accessibility

e Written comment submission opportunities

e Stakeholder-specific input sessions with key partner groups
® Business community and employer feedback sessions

Comment Integration and Response

e Comprehensive review and consideration of all public comments

e Written responses to substantive comments and recommendations
¢ Plan modifications based on stakeholder input where appropriate

e Final plan distribution to all commenters and stakeholders



IV. Local Plan - Workforce Development Area #1

1. Description of the Local Workforce Development System
The programs that are included in the system
Core Partners involved in the OMJ Centers:

e Adult (WIOA Title I)

¢ Dislocated Worker (WIOA Title I)

e CCMEP (WIOA Title | & TANF)

e Adult Education and Literacy Programs (ASPIRE) (WIOA Title I1)
* Wagner-Peyser Employment Services

* VVocational Rehabilitation Services (OOD)

e Carl D. Perkins Career and Technical Programs

e Senior Community Service Employment Programs (VANTAGE)
e Jobs for Veterans State Grants Program

* TANF Employment Programming

e Unemployment Insurance Programs

e Community Services Block Grants

» Reintegration of Ex-Offenders Program

* Trade Act coordination with local Rapid Response activities

e Layoff aversion approaches which include technical support in consideration of employer-
owned/led business conversions rather than closure

Additional partners who also participate in our OMJ Centers:

* Valley View Health System

* Counseling Center

e Shawnee State University

¢ Pike County Family Health Center

¢ Pike County General Health District

e Adams County Regional Medical Center

® Recovery Services and Treatment Courts

e Public Library Systems (Adams, Brown, Pike, and Scioto Counties)

* Economic Development Organizations (JEDISO, OVRDC)

e Chambers of Commerce (Adams County, Brown County)

e Community Action Organizations (Pike County CAC, Scioto County CAQ)

e Educational Service Centers (Brown County ESC, SouthCentral Ohio ESC, Southern Ohio ESC,
Pike-Ross ESC)

e Career Technical Centers (Scioto County CTC, Southern Hills CTC, Pike County CTC)



All of the Programs and Partners work together through the Memorandum of Understanding to
support and operate the OMJ Centers. This works towards alignment of services for the
customers coming in the front door.

Location of the OhioMeansJobs centers in the local workforce development area
OMJ Center sites:

Comprehensive Center:
¢ OhioMeanslJobs Scioto Center, which is located at 433 Third St. Portsmouth, OH

Affiliate Sites:

¢ OhioMeansJobs Adams Center is located at 19221 St. Rt. 136 Winchester, OH
e OhioMeansJobs Brown Center is located at 406 W. Plum, Georgetown, OH

¢ OhioMeansJobs Pike Center is located at 941 Market St. Piketon, OH

2. An Explanation of the OhioMeansJobs Delivery System
How the local board will ensure the continuous improvement of eligible providers of services

The local Workforce System will utilize the state WIET system for Eligible Training providers,
which will include their performance data. This allows the WIOA Career Services providers and
job seekers to have access to that information when deciding which Training Provider to utilize.

WDB #1 ensures continuous improvement through:

* Regular performance monitoring and evaluation of all service providers

e Annual provider assessments using outcome data and customer satisfaction measures

¢ Technical assistance and professional development for provider staff

e Coordination with state certification and oversight processes

* Business Resource Network feedback on provider effectiveness and employer satisfaction
e Integration of labor market information to ensure training aligns with employer needs

How the local board will facilitate access to services through technology and other means
The Workforce Board facilitates access to services via the following technologies:

e Consolidated regional website providing consistent information across all OMJ Centers
* OhioMeansJobs.com registration required for all customers

* Virtual service delivery capabilities developed during the pandemic and continuing post-
CoviD

e High-speed internet access and computer labs at all OMJ Centers

* Mobile wifi hotspots and equipment lending for rural customers

® GRIT Project remote work enablement through technology centers

* Social media engagement through Facebook, Twitter, and other platforms

e LinkedIn Learning access for all customers with over 15,000 courses available



* Online career exploration and assessment tools
e Virtual job fairs and recruitment events

ADA compliance and accessibility for individuals with disabilities

WDB #1 has completed and will continue to maintain its Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA)
checklist, as documented in its OhioMeansJobs "One-Stop System Certification" for all OMJ
Centers. Staff in each of our OMJ sites has completed the "Windmills" training provided by
ODJFS and OOD.

Each OMJ Center maintains:

* Handicap parking and accessible entrances

e Computers with assistive technology including screen readers and voice recognition
e Adjustable workstations for wheelchair access

* TTY and captioning services for hearing impaired customers

e Materials available in alternative formats

e Staff trained in disability awareness and accommodation procedures

* Partnership with OOD for specialized services and assistive technology

o Referral processes for additional disability-related support services

The Board ensures ongoing training of staff members and partner personnel regarding services
to individuals with disabilities. It also provides assistive technology and regularly monitors
activities and facilities to ensure accessibility.

Coordination with regional JobsOhio
WDB #1 coordinates with JobsOhio through:

* Regional participation in JobsOhio workforce development initiatives

» Business intelligence sharing and employer engagement coordination

e Support for business recruitment and retention efforts

e Participation in sector-specific workforce strategies

e Coordination with Ohio Southeast regional economic development efforts
e Joint employer outreach and business development activities

e Labor market information sharing and analysis

e Support for JobsOhio priority industry development

The roles and resource contributions of the OhioMeansJobs center partners

The roles and resource contributions are outlined in the comprehensive Memorandum of
Understanding between all OMJ Center partners. Partners contribute through:

e Direct service delivery in their areas of expertise
* Funding and resource sharing for operations and programming
e Staff cross-training and shared professional development



¢ Coordinated customer referrals and case management

» Shared facilities, equipment, and technology resources

e Joint outreach and community engagement activities

e Performance accountability and outcome tracking

® Business engagement and employer services coordination

3. Description and Assessment of Adult and Dislocated Worker Services

There is a robust array of Adult and Dislocated Worker employment and training activities at
each OMJ Center as well as via Internet, telephone, partners and provider locations. Each
individual is directly referred to the specific services that best meet his/her particular needs.

Adult and Dislocated Worker workforce activities are provided under the broad categories of
Basic Career Services, Individualized Career Services, and Training Services. Basic Career
Services are available to any customer, while Individualized Career Services and Training
Services are reserved for individuals who meet WIOA eligibility requirements.

Basic Career Services provided in Area 1 include:

e Information about services available through the OMJ Center and System

e |nitial assessment of needs including skills, aptitudes, and barriers

* Referral to appropriate services and community resources

e Self-directed or staff-assisted job search and placement assistance

e Workshops, including resume writing, interviewing skills, and job search strategies
e Information on:

e Labor market information and career exploration

e Training providers and program options

e Supportive services and community resources

¢ Unemployment insurance and benefits

¢ Financial aid and scholarship opportunities

¢ Relocation assistance and mobility resources
Individualized Career Services provided in Area 1 include:

e Eligibility determination for WIOA services

e Comprehensive assessment of skills, work history, and barriers

¢ Individual Employment Plan (IEP) defining specific goals and pathway for achievement
e Career counseling and planning services

e Short-term prevocational services and work readiness training

e Internships and work experience opportunities

e Workforce preparation activities including digital literacy



e Financial literacy services and counseling
¢ Individual and group counseling and mentoring
e Follow-up services for up to 12 months after program exit

Training Services provided in Area 1 include:

e Occupational skills training using an Individual Training Account (ITA)
® On-the-job training (OJT) with employer contracts

® Customized training designed to meet specific employer needs

¢ Incumbent worker training for skills upgrading

* Pre-apprenticeship and registered apprenticeship programs

e Skills upgrading and retraining for career advancement

e Entrepreneurial training and microenterprise development

e Workplace training and work-based learning opportunities

The implementation of WIOA eliminated the sequence of services that was previously required,
so now an individual who is determined eligible and suitable for Adult or Dislocated Worker
services does not have to participate in career service activities prior to being enrolled into
training services.

Training must be directly linked to an in-demand industry sector or occupation, or a sector that
has a high potential for sustained demand or growth. Training providers are found through
Ohio's Workforce Inventory of Education and Training (WIET), which establishes eligibility and
provides information about training institutions and their programs.

4. Reference to CCMEP Plans

The Workforce Board is participating with the CCMEP Program in our workforce area and has
been actively involved in the process with our Lead Agencies in each county. Each county within
WDA #1 has submitted the required CCMEP county plan as required in rule 5101:14-1-03 of the
Administrative Code.

CCMEP services are coordinated through the OMJ Centers and include:

e Comprehensive assessment and individualized service planning

* Work experience and paid employment opportunities

e Educational services including GED completion and post-secondary support

e Supportive services including transportation, childcare, and emergency assistance
e Follow-up services and long-term career development

e Integration with WIOA Youth services for seamless service delivery

5. Coordination and Service Integration

Maximizing coordination and avoiding duplication of Wagner-Peyser services



WDB #1 moved to a single One Stop Operator for our four-county area to ensure that all
Centers carry a consistent message and utilize the same processes, procedures and forms.

Coordination strategies include:

® Ongoing dialogue between the Board, One Stop Operator and Wagner-Peyser to streamline
services

e Integrated intake and assessment procedures

* Shared case management and referral processes

e Coordinated employer services and job development

¢ Joint performance accountability and outcome tracking

e Cross-training of staff on all available services and programs

e Elimination of duplicative paperwork and administrative processes

6. Cooperative Agreements

The executed cooperative agreements define how service providers carry out the requirements
for integration of and access to the entire set of services available in the local OhioMeansJobs
system.

The comprehensive Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) for the One Stop System contains
detailed information on:

* Roles and responsibilities of each partner organization

e Resource contributions including funding, staff, and facilities
e Service delivery coordination and integration procedures

e Referral processes and customer flow management

» Performance accountability and data sharing requirements
e Cost allocation and resource sharing agreements

e Cross-training requirements and professional development
e Continuous improvement and quality assurance processes

The MOU ensures coordinated service delivery that addresses:

e Cross-training of staff on partner programs and services

e Technical assistance and capacity building support

e Use and sharing of information and data systems

e Cooperative efforts with employers and business engagement

e Coordination of outreach and community engagement activities
e Joint planning and strategic development processes

7. Identification of the Fiscal Agent

CAO of Scioto County, Inc. was selected by the Local Elected Officials to be the fiscal agent for
WIOA in Workforce Area #1.



The fiscal agent is responsible for:

» Receipt and disbursement of all WIOA funds

* Financial management and accounting procedures

e Compliance with federal and state fiscal requirements

¢ Audit coordination and preparation

e Contract management and procurement oversight

e Financial reporting and performance tracking

* Risk management and internal controls

e Coordination with the Workforce Development Board on fiscal matters

8. Competitive Process for WIOA Title | Activities

WDB #1 will follow all federal, state and local laws on procurement. The competitive process
includes:

* Request for Proposal (RFP) process for Youth Program services

* Request for Proposal (RFP) process for One Stop Operator selection
e Competitive procurement for Career Services as required

e Open and transparent selection processes

¢ Conflict of interest policies and procedures

e Evaluation criteria based on performance, cost, and capacity

e Public notification and comment opportunities

» Appeals and grievance procedures for unsuccessful bidders

All procurement activities will comply with:

e WIOA regulations and guidance

e Uniform Guidance (2 CFR 200) procurement standards
e State of Ohio procurement requirements

e Local procurement policies and procedures

e Equal opportunity and nondiscrimination requirements

9. Actions to Become/Remain a High-Performing Board
The Workforce Board will take the following actions toward remaining a high-performing board:
Strategic Planning and Continuous Improvement

e Annual strategic planning sessions to assess regional needs and system performance

® Regular board training on WIOA requirements, labor market trends, and best practices

e Participation in state and national workforce development conferences and training

* One Stop Certification process including basic certification and continuous improvement
* Performance monitoring and outcome evaluation on a quarterly basis

Innovation and Best Practice Development



¢ Continued expansion and refinement of the GRIT Project model

* Development of new evidence-based practices for serving barrier populations
e Integration of emerging technologies and service delivery methods

e Documentation and replication of successful program models

e Participation in research and evaluation activities

Partnership Development and Enhancement

* Expansion of the Business Resource Network to include additional partners

e Strengthening of education partnerships and career pathway development

e Enhanced coordination with economic development and community organizations
* Development of new funding partnerships and resource leveraging opportunities
» Regional leadership in workforce development innovation and policy

Performance Excellence and Accountability

e Achievement of all negotiated performance standards

* Implementation of continuous quality improvement processes
e Customer satisfaction monitoring and service enhancement

o Staff professional development and capacity building

e Compliance with all federal, state, and local requirements

10. Technology Integration and Case Management
Integrated technology-enabled intake and case management

OhioMeanslobs centers are implementing and transitioning to integrated, technology-enabled
intake and case management information systems for programs carried out under WIOA.

The local area utilizes:

e Common intake procedures developed by all partners and utilized within the OMJ Centers
* Ohio Workforce Case Management System (OWCMS) for participant tracking and services
e County Finance Information System (CFIS) for expenditure tracking and budget monitoring
e Integrated reporting systems for performance accountability and compliance

» Shared databases and information systems among partner organizations

Technology Enhancement Initiatives

e Continued development of virtual service delivery capabilities

* Enhancement of mobile and remote access options

e Integration of new assessment and career exploration tools

* Implementation of customer relationship management systems
* Development of real-time data dashboards and reporting tools



All WIOA Career Service Providers are required to utilize the OWCMS and CFIS systems, and the
Board monitors compliance to ensure consistent data collection and reporting across all
programs and services.



V. Assurances

The following assurances are being provided by the WDB #1 as required in WIOA regulations
regarding regional and local planning:

* The Local Workforce Development Board must assure it will establish fiscal control and fund
accounting procedures to ensure the proper disbursement of, and accounting for all funds
received through the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act.

* The Local Workforce Development Board must assure that it shall keep records that are
sufficient to permit the preparation of reports required by the Act and shall maintain such
records, including standardized records for all individual participants, and submit such reports
as the State may require.

* The Local Workforce Development Board must assure that it will collect and maintain data
necessary to show compliance with the nondiscrimination provisions of the Act.

* The Local Workforce Development Board must assure that funds will be spent in accordance
with the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act, regulations, written Department of Labor
Guidance, written Ohio Department of Job and Family Services guidance, and all other
applicable Federal and State laws.

® The Local Workforce Development Board must assure that veterans will be afforded
employment and training activities authorized in the Jobs for Veterans Act and 20 C.F.R. Part
1010.

® The Local Workforce Development Board must assure it will comply with any grant
procedures prescribed by the Secretary which are necessary to enter into contracts for the use
of funds under WIOA, including but not limited to the following:

e General Administrative Requirements — Uniform Guidance at 2 C.F.R. Part 200 and 2
C.F.R. Part 2900

e Assurances and Certifications — SF 424B — Assurances for Non-Construction Programs;
29 C.F.R. Part 31, 32 — Nondiscrimination and Equal Opportunity Assurance (and
Regulation); 29 C.F.R. Part 93 — Certification Regarding Lobbying (and Regulation); 29
C.F.R. Parts 94 and 95 — Drug Free Workplace and Debarment and Suspension;
Certifications (and Regulation)

* The Local Workforce Development Board must assure that priority for adult career and
training services will be given to recipients of public assistance, other low-income individuals,
and individuals who are basic skills deficient in accordance with federal and state guidance.



* The Local Workforce Development Board must assure compliance with Section 188 of WIOA
and the Americans with Disabilities Act regarding physical and programmatic accessibility of
facilities, programs, services, technology, and materials for individuals with disabilities.

* The Local Workforce Development Board must assure coordination with required partners
and core programs to maximize resources and eliminate duplication of services.

e The Local Workforce Development Board must assure that the regional plan and local plan
represent efforts to maximize resources available under Title | of the Workforce Innovation and
Opportunity Act and to coordinate these resources with other State and Local programs in the
planning region.

See Next Page for Signatures



» I Workforce Development Area 1
- Adams, Brown, Pike & Scioto Counties
&‘\f, A proud partner of the American Job Center Network

OhioMeansJobs.

Policy Number: 09-25
Subject: Labor Exchange
Effective Date: 09/24/2025—-DRAFT

This Policy Obsoletes:

Board Approved:

Revision Approved:

Purpose

The purpose of this policy is to provide guidelines to OhioMeansJobs Centers for
Adams, Brown, Pike, and Scioto (Area 1) counties for conducting labor exchange
activities specific to employer services. These activities include accepting and refusing
job orders, processing job orders, and refusing, discontinuing, or limiting services to
employers.

I. Effective Date

Immediate

A. Rescission

ODJFS, Workforce Investment Act Transmittal Letter No. 28, Processing Job Orders in
One-Stop Environment. ODJFS, Workforce Investment Act Transmittal Letter No. 30,
Guidelines Regarding Job Orders and Employer Services.

ll. Background

Under WIOA, Ohio is required to deliver labor exchange activities as part of a
comprehensive workforce system. Labor exchange services offered to employers



include, but are not limited to, referral of job seekers to available job openings,
assistance in the development of job order requirements, matching job seeker
experience with job requirements, skills and attributes, assisting employers with special
recruitment needs, arranging job fairs, assisting employers with analyzing hard-to-fill job
orders, assisting with job restructuring, and helping employers manage layoffs.

As labor exchange activities are part of the comprehensive workforce system, these
activities may be provided by a variety of partners. These partners include, but are not
limited to, those providing Wagner-Peyser and veteran services and those working in
the Area 1, OhioMeansJobs Center, county department of job and family service,
county children services agency, and county child support enforcement agency.

It should be noted that any labor exchange activities funded through Wagner-Peyser
Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act Policy Letter No. 17-01 requires that
OhioMeansJobs.com be used for labor exchange activities conducted on behalf of an
employer, including job postings and resume searches. OhioMeansJobs.com replaces
all previously existing labor exchange systems. The use of OhioMeansJobs.com
illustrates the shift from a staff-assisted system to a self-service system. However,
OhioMeansJobs Center staff will continue to be readily available to assist employers
with their business needs.

lll. Requirements
A. Establishment of Local Policy and Procedure

OhioMeansJobs Center Operators, in coordination with the Workforce Development
Board Area 1 (WDB1) and other partners, are responsible for developing written policies
and procedures for accepting or refusing job orders, discontinuing, or refusing services
to employers, limiting services provided to employers, and ensuring quality control of job
orders. The procedures should contain, at minimum, the following:

1. A uniform method of determining when job orders are accepted or rejected; what
constitutes a bona fide job order; and what quality control standards should be
used for writing and posting job orders onto OhioMeansJobs.com.

2. General guidance, with additional detail as needed or desired, to assist staff in
properly implementing the employer services elements of the labor exchange
program.



B. Types of Unsuitable Job Orders and Appropriate Actions

Although assistance in development of job order requirements is a labor exchange
activity offered to employers, there are circumstances in which an OhioMeansJobs
Center is required by law, regulation, or policy to reject a job order. The following
information describes specific circumstances surrounding job orders and the
appropriate action when one must be rejected.

1. Fee for Placement

The OhioMeansJobs Center Area 1 will not accept a job order if the employer or a
staffing agency recruiting for an employer requires the applicant to pay a fee to apply
for, be referred to, or be considered for empioyment. Universal access to basic labor
exchange services will be at no cost to job seekers. The OhioMeansJobs Center Area 1
staff should help the employer understand why the order is rejected. If the employer
requires the applicant to pay for materials, equipment, and uniforms or for testing and
licensing, the job order may be taken as long as the required expenses are listed on the
job posting. These items are not considered to be fees for placement.

2. Independent Contractors

The purpose of l[abor exchange is to facilitate employment. Job orders will only be
accepted that offer employment opportunities where an employer-employee relationship
exists. Typically, an employer-employee relationship does not exist if the worker is an
independent contractor. Independent contractor opportunities are self-employment,
which represents business opportunities, rather than employment. The individual is
responsible for paying his/her own quarterly income taxes, disability insurance in lieu of
Workers' Compensation, Social Security taxes, and other such costs of doing business.

The determination as to whether a job opening will be for an employee or an
independent contractor can be complex but is made by examining the right to control
how, when, and where the person performs services. One test used to distinguish an
independent contractor opportunity from a legal employment opportunity is:

* |f the employee is issued an IRS Form W-2, it is employment.

« If the individual is issued an IRS Form 1099, it is an independent contractor
opportunity.

3. Non-Bona Fide Job Orders



OhioMeansJobs Center Area 1 staff may process bona fide job orders. However, job
orders that are received to build a list of applicants for future openings are not bona fide
orders and must be refused and not posted to OhioMeansJobs.com.

The OhioMeansJobs Center Area 1 staff should also be alert to the possibility that a job
opening or an employer may not be bona fide. Examples of questionable situations may
be:

« When an employer requires any unusual pre-employment action on the part of the
applicant such as a deposit for some alleged service (e.g., transportation, purchase of
equipment, dues, food, or lodging); or

« When an unknown employer indicates that applicants will be interviewed at an address
that is not a normal place of business, such as a hotel room.

If the OhioMeansJobs Center in Area 1 cannot verify that the opening or employer is
bona fide, the job order must be refused and must not be posted on
OhioMeansJobs.com.

4. Pre-designation of Applicants

When an employer requests that certain workers be referred on any basis other than an
occupational qualification, the job order should be refused and not posted on
OhioMeansJobs.com. For example, an employer might identify a specific individual to
be referred and indicate that he or she is not willing to consider other applicants. Such
requests for referrals are considered pre-designation of applicants and make a job order
unacceptable.

An exception to the rule on pre-designation occurs when an employer lists an
agricultural job order. In this instance, the employer may request a specific crew leader
or worker. Another exception would be if the employer requests that a specific person
be referred and is also willing to consider other referrals. With both exceptions, the job
orders should be accepted.

5. Discrimination and Restrictions Discrimination

There are various federal laws and regulations which prohibit discriminatory
employment practices.

a. Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 USC § 2000d et seq., prohibits
discrimination in hiring, promotion, discharge, pay, fringe benefits, and other aspects of
employment, on the basis of race, color, religion, sex, or national origin.



b. Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 USC § 2000d et seq., prohibits
discrimination on the basis of race, color, and national origin in programs and activities
receiving federal financial assistance, which would include most workforce development
programs and services administered by ODJFS. (Refer to WIOA Section 188.)

¢. The Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967 prohibits arbitrary age
discrimination in employment against individuals 40 years of age or older by:

1. private employers having 20 or more employees and engaging in an industry
affecting interstate commerce, or
2. any governmental entity.

d. The Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA), 42 USC § 12101 et seq., prohibits
employment discrimination against qualified individuals with disabilities.

e. Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, 29 USC § 794, prohibits discrimination
against qualified disabled applicants in federally funded programs and services,
including WIOA and OhioMeansJobs Center services (refer to WIOA Section 188).

f. Title Il of the Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act of 2008 (GINA) which
prohibits employment discrimination based on genetic information about an applicant,
employee, or former employee.

The Civil Rights Act of 1964 and the Wagner-Peyser Act require that the labor
exchange system ensures that discriminatory job orders are not accepted. In addition,
the Civil Rights Act of 1964 prohibits the labor exchange system from providing any
service to an employer when there are reasonable grounds (i.e. documented evidence)
to believe that the employer is engaged in discriminatory practices.

An exception to the nondiscrimination laws is a situation involving bona fide
occupational qualification (BFOQ). Examples of BFOQs would be a request for an
actress to portray a female role in a play or movie, or a male attendant to serve in a
men's locker room. Certain jobs have bona fide age requirements based on agility (e.g.
fire fighter or police officer), legal requirements (e.g. bartender), or insurance
requirements (e.g. commercial drivers). Orders with acceptable BFOQs may be written
and serviced (refer to 42 U.S.C. § 2000).

Should an employer wish to list an opening containing discriminatory specifications, and
a BFOQ does not exist, the OhioMeansJobs Center should advise the employer that
due to the discriminatory specifications, the job order cannot be posted. If the employer



is willing to change the requirements, the order may be accepted. Otherwise, the order
must be refused and not posted to OhioMeansJobs.com.

Restrictions

While there are a limited number of instances where the law prohibits or restricts the
hiring of an ex-offender, employers are generally not allowed to have bianket bars
against the referral or hiring of individuals with criminal records. Employers are
permitted to consider the relationship between the conviction record and the job position
itself.

Hiring restrictions based on a criminal record must be "job-related" and consistent with
"business necessity." Employers should consider the nature and gravity of the offense;
the time that has passed; and the nature of the job before disqualifying an individual
from employment based on his or her criminal record.

If an employer attempts to place a job order and includes a restriction such as "no
felony convictions" or "no misdemeanors" or "clean background check,"
OhioMeansJobs Center Area 1 staff should discuss the reason for the restriction with
the employer. If no clear "business necessity" or "job-related" basis can be documented,
the OhioMeansJobs Center Area 1 must inform the employer that the requirement is
restrictive and must be removed. If the employer will not agree to remove the restriction,
the job order must be refused and not posted to OhioMeansJobs.com.

6. Credit History

Although individuals with negative credit histories are not a protected group under the
applicable federal civil rights laws, and the Fair Credit Reporting Act (FCRA) permits the
use of credit reports for employment decisions, antidiscrimination laws may be
implicated when credit history is used to make employment decisions. For example, if
an employer screens out all workers who have a negative credit history, this may have
an unequal impact on certain protected groups whose members have an undesirable
credit history at a disproportionately higher rate than other groups.

The OhioMeansJobs Center should accept and process job orders using safeguards to
prevent discrimination against individuals in protected groups based on their credit
information by ensuring job orders are handled in the following manner:

» OhioMeansJobs Center staff should advise employers not to automatically exclude job
seekers based on their credit history or any other hiring criterion unless it is job-related
and consistent with business necessity. Staff should also inform employers of their



obligations under FCRA, which requires employers to obtain applicants' permission
before asking a consumer reporting agency for a credit report and to provide applicants
with a copy of the report and a summary of their rights before taking adverse action,
such as denying employment.

» The OhioMeansJobs Center should have a process, similar to the one used to identify
other discriminatory language, for identifying job orders that include hiring restrictions
based on credit history.

» When a job posting excluding applicants based on credit history has been identified,
the OhioMeansJobs Center staff must provide employers the opportunity to remove or
edit the job order. Any job posting containing language that excludes candidates based
on credit history should be posted only if there is an explanation that the exclusion in the
job posting may be unlawful under certain circumstances and there is a notification to
the job seeker informing him or her that the OhioMeansJobs Center does not prohibit
individuals with negative credit history from applying for the posted position. The
notification should also include how the job seeker may obtain a free copy of their credit
report. OhioMeansJobs Center and WDB1 staff should forward all job seekers'
applications to employers who otherwise meet the job qualifications, despite the
language in the job order excluding candidates based on their credit history.

7. Affirmative Action

An affirmative action job order seeks qualified applicants, particularly members of a
specified group who, for non-occupationally valid purposes, have been discouraged
from entering certain occupational fields. In addition, it is an order that results from:

a. Executive Order No. 11246 and implementing instructions at 41 C.F.R. Chapter 60,
requiring certain government contractors to take affirmative action to hire and promote
qualified minorities and women; or

b. Section 503 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 and implementing regulations at 41
C.F.R. Part 60-741 requiring certain government contractors to take affirmative action to
employ and advance in employment qualified disabled workers; or

c. Section 402 of the Vietnam Era Veterans' Readjustment Assistance Act of 1974, as
amended, 38 U.S.C § 4212 and implementation of regulations at 41 C.F.R. Parts 60-
250 and 60-300, which requires government contractors and subcontractors to list most
employment openings with an appropriate employment service delivery system. In part,
requires affirmative action to employ and advance in employment qualified protected



veterans; disabled veterans; recently separated veterans; active-duty war time or
campaign badge veterans; and Armed Forces service medal veterans; or

d. A court order resulting from a decision in which there was a finding of employment
discrimination; or

e. A conciliation agreement as authorized by Title VII of the Civil Rights Act; or
f. Provisions of federal, state, or local fair employment practice law; or

g. An affirmative action plan adopted pursuant to the Equal Employment Opportunity
Commission's guidelines on Affirmative Action (29 C.F.R. Part 1608).

OhioMeansJobs Centers in Area 1 should accept all legitimate affirmative action job
orders and may assist the employer with special applicant searches and recruitment
efforts. However, applicant resume searches must foliow the standard job order
processing procedures, including veteran preference requirements. Employers should
be advised that an order that requires exclusive referral of a specific applicant group, or
referral of a specific applicant group "quota," cannot be serviced if these restrictions are
held.

An affirmative action order should be clearly marked as affirmative action and clearly
reflect the employer's needs. An example of appropriate language to be included in the
job order requirements section might be: "Affirmative Action: All qualified applicants will
be considered. Minorities and women encouraged to apply."”

8. Violations of Law

Job orders that contain job duties or terms or conditions of employment that are
contrary to law must be refused. Examples of such orders would be those specifying
pay below the legal minimum wage (without the provision of earning tips), requiring the
worker to perform illegal activities, or specifying hours for a youth worker in violation of
child labor laws. OhioMeansJobs Area 1 staff must explain the legal basis for refusing
the order to the employer and offer the opportunity for the order to be modified. If the
employer agrees to an appropriate modification, the job order may be accepted.
Otherwise, the order must be refused and not posted to OhioMeansJobs.com.

9. Labor Disputes

When a labor dispute results in a work stoppage (such as a labor strike, walkout, or
lockout), OhioMeansJobs Area 1 are restricted from accepting or servicing job orders



that will directly, or indirectly, aid in filling positions vacant because the former occupant
is on strike, is being locked out in the course of a labor dispute, or the filling of which is
otherwise an issue in the labor dispute resulting in a work stoppage has been resolved,
the OhioMeansJobs Center may once again resume full service to the employer (refer
to 20 C.F.R. 652.9).

OhioMeansJobs Area 1 may accept job orders from an employer involved in a labor
dispute until a work stoppage occurs and may accept job orders during a work stoppage
as long as the orders are for positions that are not impacted, either directly or indirectly,
by the work stoppage. When job orders for positions not impacted are taken from an
employer involved in a work stoppage, OhioMeansJobs Area 1 staff is responsible for
notifying any applicants referred that the employer is involved in a labor dispute and that
the position listed on the job order is not vacant because of the dispute.
OhioMeansJobs Area 1 are encouraged to include this information in the job description
of the job order.

Once a labor dispute resulting in a work stoppage has been resolved, the
OhioMeansJobs Center may once again resume full service to the employer (refer to 20
C.F.R. 652.9). OhioMeansJobs Area 1 staff should be alert to labor disputes that are
developing in their areas and are encouraged to contact their ODJFS Program Delivery
Manager with information on any such disputes. This will help facilitate timely
notification of all impacted areas should a work stoppage occur.

10. Membership or Non-membership in a Labor Organization

Orders specifying membership or non-membership in a labor organization as a
condition of being hired may be in violation of law if the employer is subject to the
Labor-Management Relations Act of 1947 (Taft-Hartley Act). (Referto 29 U.S.C. §
158(a)). If the job order is in violation with this law, the job order must be refused and
not posted on OhioMeansJobs.com.

However, if the employer requires an employee to join a labor organization on or after
the 30th day of employment, and this requirement is pursuant to the employer's
agreement with the labor organization, the job order would not be in violation of the Act
and should be accepted. In the case of the building and construction industries, the
requirement to join a labor organization may be on or after the seventh (7th) day of
employment (refer to 29 U.S.C. § 158(a)(3)).

11. Staffing and Temporary Agencies



Both staffing and temporary agencies may use the self-service functionality of
OhioMeansJobs.com for job posting and resume searches, as well as other features
such as the training center, workforce program locator, etc. Any posting by either a
staffing or temporary agency must be for a current and valid job opening.

A. Staffing Agencies

Based upon their working relationship, staffing agencies and OhioMeansJobs Centers
may partner and coordinate their work efforts for job posting and resume searches. In
doing so, the OhioMeansJobs Area 1 staff should be alert to whether job orders from
staffing agencies are current and valid job openings and are not for the purpose of
building lists of applicants for future openings. Furthermore, staff should also make
certain that the job orders are not a duplicate order listed by an employer that the
staffing agency may be representing.

B. Temporary Agencies

If a temporary agency working on behalf of an employer contacts the OhioMeansJobs
Area 1 for assistance, staff can assist the temporary agency by demonstrating the self-
service functionality of OhioMeansJobs.com. It is expected that the temporary agency
will complete their own job postings, resume searches, and other services within
OhioMeansJobs.com without the assistance of OhioMeansJobs Area 1 or partner staff.

12. Casual Labor

Workers performing casual labor are either independent contractors or employees. An
example may be someone who was hired for one day to clean the windows of a
business or a group that is hired for a few hours to unload new office furniture. The
hiring company's legal obligations to workers performing casual labor are the same as
for other workers.

Therefore, OhioMeansJobs Area 1 should be careful to verify an employee-employer
relationship and not a posting for an independent contractor.

13. Substandard Job Orders

A job order should be considered substandard when an employer is offering wages or
hours that are below the standard in a labor market for a particular type of work.
OhioMeansJobs Center Area 1 should be aware of local labor market information (LMI),
such as average wage by occupation, to establish local standards and policies



regarding what job orders are to be considered substandard. Further information on LMI
is located at http://ohiolmi.com/.

If a job order is considered substandard, the OhioMeansJobs Area 1 staff should
provide the employer with appropriate labor market information and offer him or her
opportunity to modify the job order. If the employer agrees to an appropriate
modification, the order should be accepted and posted on OhioMeansJobs.com. If not,
the OhioMeansJobs Area 1 must inform the employer that staff cannot post the job
order and that the employer will have to post the job order using self-service
OhioMeansJobs.com.

C. Processing Job Orders

Job order processing involves the comparison of specific job skill requirements with
those of the job seekers. Pursuant to WIOAPL No. 17-01, those providing Wagner-
Peyser and veteran services and those working in the local workforce system,
OhioMeansJobs Area 1, county department of job and family service, county children
services agency, and county child support enforcement agency who process job orders
are required to do so in OhioMeansJobs.com.

Sharing Information with Workforce System Partners

Workforce system partners, including those providing Wagner-Peyser and veteran
services and those working in the local workforce system and OhioMeansJobs Centers,
must work cooperatively and share job orders to serve employers effectively and
efficiently. All workforce system partners within each county must use the same Federal
Employer Identification Number (FEIN) for registering in OhioMeansJobs.com as an
employer to conduct resume searches. A unique FEIN was established for each
county's OhioMeansJobs Center. All Wagner-Peyser, veteran services, local workforce
system, OhioMeansJobs Center, and partner agency staff within a county will use this
unique FEIN. Use of another county issued FEIN may be used only if all workforce
system partners are sharing this FEIN.

By using the same FEIN number, all staff performing labor exchange activities can
share resumes, notes, and other information that will assist employers in finding the
talent needed to fill positions. By sharing the FEIN number, a seamless approach to the
provision of services will occur regardless of which workforce system staff or partner
conducts the activities.

Identifying New Job Orders



Job orders may be placed directly into OhioMeansJobs.com by employers utilizing self-
service or by OhioMeansJobs Area 1 staff working with the employer. To provide timely
services to employers, it is imperative that OhioMeansJobs Center management and
staff closely monitor new job order activity by accessing county reports of
OhioMeansJobs.com job postings through the SAP/BO reporting database or by
accessing the job postings trend reports on OhioMeansJobs.com.

Conducting Job Orders through the ODJFS Business Support

An employer can post jobs on OhioMeansJobs.com without the assistance of the
OhioMeansJobs Area 1 staff. Some employers request the assistance of the ODJFS
Business Support Center. When the employer selects this option, the Business Support
Center staff performs a resume search and sends up to five (5) referrals to the
employer. Veterans must receive priority of service in OhioMeansJobs.com resume
searches and when Business Support Center staff send referrals to employers. Upon
veteran resumes meeting the job order criteria, they shall be given priority of service
over non-covered persons when sending referrals to employers (WIOAPL 15-20.3).

Posting a Job Order

Job posting types listed on OhioMeansJobs.com are as follows:
Agriculture, H2A, FLC

A. Regular Agricultural Job Order

The regular agricultural job order is the most used type of agricultural job post and can
be placed in OhioMeansJobs.com by the employers themselves or by Migrant Outreach
Specialists within the MSFW program. Regular job postings are open to all qualified job
seekers.

B. Agricultural Recruitment System (ARS) Job Order

An agricultural job order that is placed as an ARS job order is done so by the Migrant
Seasonal Farm Worker Account Executive. These job orders are requested by
employers who are unable to find suitable workers in the local job area and are willing to
expand the job search area to the rest of the country before resorting to foreign labor.
ARS Jobs are posted to OhioMeansJobs and appear as a regular job order on
OhioMeansJobs.com but the Employer name is redacted, and the application process is
restricted to the local area for the first 48 hours after posting. This process is built into



the functionality of OhioMeansJobs and can only be posted by the MSFW Account
Executive after working directly with the employer or Farm Labor Contractor.

C. Foreign Labor Certification (FLC)-- H-2A

A Foreign Labor Certification FLC (H-2A) job order is used to comply with the United
States Department of Labor (USDOL) Foreign Labor Certification Program under the
Immigration and Nationality Act of 1952 (INA). Pub. L. 82-414, 8 U.S.C § 1101 et. seq.
All H-2A job orders are placed when an employer is seeking to bring foreign workers
into the United States for agricultural work. Foreign labor certification can be obtained
when it can be demonstrated there are insufficient qualified United States workers
available and willing to do the work. H-2A job orders must be immediately posted on
OhioMeansJobs.com for 30 days. When H-2A job orders are made available on
OhioMeansJobs.com, staff must complete the job order the same as a regular job
posting and refer qualified job seekers.

D. Foreign Labor Certification (FLC)- H2B

An FLC (H-2B) job order is used to comply with the USDOL Foreign Labor Certification
Program under the Immigration and Nationality Act of 1952 (INA). Pub. L. 82-414, 8
U.S.C § 1101 et. seq. All H-2B job orders are placed when an employer is seeking to
bring foreign workers into the United States for NON-AGRICULTURAL work. Foreign
labor certification can be obtained when it can be demonstrated there are insufficient
qualified United States workers available and willing to do the work. H-2B job orders are
submitted through our online application (Job Order Form).

This process allows for an immediate response to the employer from ODJFS that
enables the employer to begin the FLC process with USDOL.

Apprenticeship

Apprenticeships are offered by both private employers and union organizations seeking
to recruit entry-level candidates or trainees. Apprenticeships combine elements of
training and employment and provide job seekers with the opportunity to learn a skilled
trade.

Apprenticeship sponsors can be a single business or a consortium of businesses. The
sponsor can be an industry association, labor-management organization, community
college, workforce board or a community-based organization.

Federal Contractor



The Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs (OFCCP) administers and
enforces the affirmative action provisions of Vietnam Era Veterans' Readjustment
Assistance Act (VEVRAA), which require federal contractors and subcontractors to
employ and advance in employment qualified covered veterans.

To implement the affirmative action requirement, VEVRAA and the implementing
regulations at 41 C.F.R. Part 60-250 and Part 60-300 issued by OFCCP require federal
contractors and subcontractors to list most employment opportunities with the
appropriate employment service delivery system. Each employment service delivery
system is required to give covered veterans priority in referrals to such openings.
Executive and senior management positions, positions to be filled within the contractor's
organization, and positions lasting three days or less are exempt from the mandatory
job listing requirement.

Jobs must be listed with OhioMeansJobs.com to satisfy the requirement to list job
openings with the appropriate employment service delivery system.

Internship

Internship orders combine elements of regular employment and apprenticeships.
Internships are fixed-duration positions that are typically in professional or high-skills
professions. When internships are available in OhioMeansJobs.com, complete the job
order like a regular job post.

Regular

The regular job order is the most used type of job post and can be placed in
OhioMeansJobs.com by the employers themselves or by OhioMeansJobs Center or
partner staff. Regular job postings are open to all qualified job seekers.

It is important to select the appropriate type of posting to find qualified job seekers.
Searching for Resumes

Once a job order has been received, OhioMeansJobs Center or partner staff must
generate a resume search as soon as practical, preferably within one (1) business day.

The resume search is conducted on OhioMeansJobs.com.

Any authorized staff may search resumes in OhioMeansJobs.com and make referrals of
qualified candidates to any open job order. Therefore, no individual "owns" a job order.



Screening and Selecting Job Seekers

Staff must review the skills and experience of each job seeker and ensure they meet the
requirements of the employer before referring them for the job opening. Employer
criteria for determining a job seeker's qualifications may include work experience,
training, skills that require extensive training or practice, pertinent knowledge, or the
physical capacity to perform the essential functions of the job.

Veterans are given full advantage of services available through the OhioMeansJobs
Center as required through WIOAPL No0.15.20.3. Veterans must also be given priority of
service when referrals are made on a job order. OhioMeansJobs.com allows a job
seeker to identify him or herself as a veteran upon registration. By doing so, his or her
resume is tagged and is listed in the resume search ahead of all other non-veterans.

Veteran's priority of service does not mean that veterans must be referred to the job
order; it means they must be given consideration first. If a veteran, or any other job
seeker, does not meet the minimum qualifications for the job order, he or she should not
be referred to the employer.

In review of the results of the resume search in OhioMeansJobs.com, staff should
determine the resumes to be provided to the employer. In accordance with the veteran's
priority of service, the resumes of the qualified veterans must be selected followed by
the resumes of qualified, non-veteran job seekers based upon the number of referral
openings available.

Referral and Notification of Job Seekers

Job referral is the process by which a registered job seeker is notified and referred to a
specific job opening on a job order. OhioMeansJobs Center staff or partner staff will
record the referral in the Referral Tab of ARIES. If the job seeker meets the
requirements, OhioMeansJobs Center or partner staff will send an e-mail to the job
seeker through OhioMeansJobs.com notifying the individual that his or her resume was
sent to an employer.

Communicating with the Employer

Communication with the employer during the selection process is important to keep the
employer informed of the progress of filling the job order and to ensure OhioMeansJobs
Center staff or partner staff is selecting job seekers based upon the employer's current

requirements and preferences.



Once the resumes have been selected for consideration, staff should send the employer
the resumes of the job seekers who meet the requirements for employment as identified
in the job order.

Record Placement Activity in Ohio's Designated Case Management System

WIOAPL No. 17-01 requires that job placement activities must be recorded in Ohio's
designated case management system to collect data on hired job seekers. If a job
seeker is hired by the employer because of the OhioMeansJobs Center's referral, job
placement information must be entered into the Employment Records tab in ARIES.

D. Refusing, Discontinuing, or Limiting Services to an Employer

OhioMeansJobs Centers may refuse or discontinue services to an employer if the
employer or the job orders meet any of the conditions for refusal specified in Section i
of this policy letter, or if the employer refuses to cooperate with the OhioMeansJobs
Center's requests for job order verification.

OhioMeansJobs Centers should set a local standard for terminating or refusing services
based on lack of cooperation from the employer.

OhioMeansJobs Centers should set a local standard for limiting services to an
employer. These standards should include the circumstances under which the
employer's openings should be posted on OhioMeansJobs.com rather than entered as
a job order and should define when multiple openings from an employer will be listed on
a single job order. OhioMeansJobs Centers are encouraged to coordinate standards for
limiting services to an employer with other OhioMeansJobs Centers sharing the same
labor market area.

IV. Monitoring

OhioMeansJobs Centers are responsible for setting local standards for the quality of job
orders obtained and processed and ensuring that these standards are met. At a
minimum, these standards should include the following:

« The job order is legal and allowable under the law, regulations or policies governing
labor exchange activities.

- The job order has complete and accurate data including location of the employer, how
to contact the employer, O-Net code, hours, and duration of the job.

- The job order contains sufficient information for job matching including job title,
required skills, secondary skills, pay information, and a description of duties.



* The job order contains a job description that can be viewed and understood by the job
seeker.

* The resume search folder in OhioMeansJobs.com contains documentation of the
qualified veterans identified in the resume search and referred to the employer.

* The resume search folder in OhioMeansJobs.com contains documentation of regular
follow-up contacts with the employer including referral verification contacts.

~ *» The resume search folder contains timely results of referrals.

The monitoring staff from the Office of Fiscal and Monitoring Services will request a
copy of these policies and procedures as a part of the local area's annual onsite
monitoring review for compliance with federal laws and regulations.

WDB 1 has developed the attached Job Order Quality Control (QC) Checklist to be
completed for each job order and kept on file with the One-Stop Operator.

V. Technical Assistance

For additional information, you may send your questions to:
WIOAQNA@)jfs.ohio.gov.

VI. References

Exec. Order No 13, 672, 79 Fed. Reg. 42, 971 (2014).

Workforce Investment Act of 1998, Pub. L. 105-220, §§ 134 (d)(2), (3)(C).
Wagner-Peyser Act of 1933, as amended, Workforce Investment Act of 1998, Pub. L.
105-220, §7(a), 112 Stat. 936, 29 U.S.C. 49 et seq.

20 C.F.R. §§ 651.10, 652.3, 652.9, 653.500.

20 C.F.R. §§ 655.121, 655.135.

20 C.F.R. §§ 656.10, 656.41.

20 C.F.R. §§ 661.410.

29 C.F.R. Part 1608, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 2000e-12.

41 C.F.R. Parts 60-300 and 74.

29 U.S.C. § 152(9).

29 U.S.C. § 158(a).

42 U.S.C. § 2000e et seq.

USDOL, Training and Employment Guidance Letter No. 11-14, Update on Complying
with Nondiscrimination Provisions: Credit History Restrictions and Possible Disparate
Impact Based on Race, National Origin, Sex, and Disability, (October 17, 2014).
USDOL, Training and Employment Notice, TEN 12-14 Promising Practices and
Resources for Addressing Long-term Unemployment, (October 17, 2014).

Ohio Admin. Code Rule 4141-3-05.



ODJFS, Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act Policy Letter No. WIOAPL 15-20.3
Priority of Service for Veterans and Eligible Spouses, (May 6, 2019).

ODJFS, Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act Policy Letter No. WIOAPL 17-01
Mandate Use of OhioMeansJobs.com for Labor Exchange Activities, (September 15,
2017).



Shior

o’ Job Order
OhioMeans Jobs. Quality Control Checklist

Adams, Brown, Plke & Sciato Counties

Aproud partner of the
Amencan Job Center network

Instructions: checklist must be completed by all OhioMeansJobs staff who post job orders on OhioMeanslobs.com, with initial
sections completed at the time of posting and documentation sections completed within 5 business days following initial employer
contact. Completed checklists must be retained in the employer file and with the One-Stop Operator; checklist will be subject to

review during monitoring visits to ensure compliance.

Job Order ID: Employer: Review Date:

1. Legal and Allowable Job Order
e []No fees to applicants; W-2 employment (not 1099); bona fide current opening
o []No discriminatory specifications (unless documented BFOQ)
e []No pre-designation of applicants (except agricultural exemptions)
e [] Criminal/credit screening is job-related with documented business necessity
e [] Complies with wage laws, labor dispute rules, and union regulations
e [] Meets local wage/hour standards or employer advised with specific LMI data

Issues/Resolution:

2. Complete Data Verification
e []Employer location and contact information complete and verified
e [ ] O*NET code accurate; hours/schedule specified; duration clearly stated
e []All required OMJ.com fields completed without errors

Issues/Resolution:

3. Job Matching Information Quality
e []Job title clear and accurately reflects position
e [] Required skills and qualifications explicitly listed and appropriate
e []Payrate/range provided and consistent with LMI standards
e [] Comprehensive duty description aligned with required skills

Issues/Resolution:

1|Page



Pyl
cag.\ﬁ;cfo’ Job Order

OhioMeansJobs.

RAdams, Brown, Pike & Scioto Countles

Aproud partner of the
American Job Center network

4. Job Description Quality
e [] Written in plain language understandable by job seekers
e [ ] Contains sufficient detail while remaining concise and well-organized
e [] Free from discriminatory or unnecessarily restrictive language

Issues/Resolution:

Quality Control Checklist

5. Documentation in OMJ Resume Search Folder
e [] Resume search conducted within 1 business day {saved in OMJ folder)
e []Qualified veterans identified with evidence of priority referral (saved in OMI folder)
e [] Follow-up contacts logged with dates and outcomes (saved in OMJ folder)
e []Referral results and dispositions documented with timely updates (saved in OMIJ folder)

Issues/Resolution:

6. ARIES Documentation
e []Referrals recorded in ARIES Referral tab
e []Placements entered in ARIES Employment Records tab (if applicable)

Issues/Resolution:

Quality Control Resuit
e []Approved

e [] Conditional Approval---Enter date issues resolved:

¢ []Rejected provide Reason:

Reviewer Printed Name:

Reviewer Signature:

2|Page



Workforce Development Board Area 1

4057-A Gallia Pike Crystal Keaton, Director
Franklin Furnace, OH 45629 Holly Johnson, Board Chair
(740) 259-6943

www.omjwdal.org

Workforce Development Board Meeting
September 24, 2025

Agenda Item: GRIT Project Training Fund Allocations
Motion Request: Approval of Memoranda of Understanding for GRIT Project Training Funds

Background:

As the GRIT Project expands its services across Appalachian Ohio, it is essential to establish partnerships with
local agencies to deliver effective training to participants in their home counties. These funds will enable our
partner organizations to provide critical occupational classroom instruction and work-based training
opportunities, leveraging their local expertise and resources to meet the needs of GRIT participants. This
strategy ensures that individuals receive the skills and support necessary for meaningful employment within
their own communities.

Proposed Motion:
Workforce Development Board authorize the Director to execute Memoranda of Understanding (MOUs) to
allocate GRIT Project training funds for the term of July 1, 2025, through June 30, 2027, to the following partner
agencies in the amounts specified:

e Ashtabula Co Career Technical Center: $400,000

e OMIJ Athens Co: $375,000

e OMIJ Belmont: $261,774

e OMIJ Carroll: $96,580

e OMJ Clermont: $400,000

e OMIJ Guernsey: $56,000

e OMIJ Highland: $260,000

¢ OMI Jackson: $335,800

e OMI Jefferson: 5348,794

e Workforce Board Area 17: $300,000

e OMIJ Meigs: $400,000

e Workforce Board Area 15: $400,080

e OMI Perry: $400,000

e OMIJ Tuscarawas: $233,046
Fiscal Impact:
Funding for these MOUs is allocated from the GRIT Project grant budget. No additional funding is required.

l_.\’/AIproud partner of American Job Center network
@
Wetions: Adams County Brown County Pike County Scioto County

19221 St. Rt. 136 406 W. Plum Street 941 Market Street 433 Third Street

Winchester, OH 45697  Georgetown, OH 45121 Piketon, OH 45661 Portsmouth, OH 45662
OhioMeansJobs.
e 937-695-0316 937-795-0316 740-289-2371 740-354-7544
Adams, Brown, Pike & Scioto Counties 800-233-7891 800-553-7393 Ext 261

A proud partner of the
American lob Center network



Workforce Development Board Area 1

4057-A Gallia Pike Crystal Keaton, Director
Franklin Furnace, OH 45629 Holly Johnson, Board Chair
(740) 259-6943

www.omjwdal.org

Workforce Development Board Meeting

September 24, 2025

Agenda Item: GRIT Project Remote Work Center Lease Extensions
Motion Request: Approval of Lease Extensions for current GRIT Project Remote Work Centers

Background:

The GRIT Project’s Remote Work Centers are a critical component of our infrastructure, providing reliable,
high-speed internet access and professional work environments to residents in communities with significant
broadband and transportation barriers. These centers directly support our strategic goals of enabling remote
work, expanding access to virtual training, and fostering economic self-sufficiency. To ensure the continuity
of these vital services, it is necessary to secure lease extensions for our facilities in Pike, Adams, and Brown
counties.

Proposed Motion:

Workforce Development Board authorize the Director to execute lease extensions for the following three
GRIT Project Remote Work Centers for the term of July 1, 2025, through June 30, 2027, with the following
terms:

1. Pike Outreach for Remote Work Center: $3,000 per month
2. Adams County Commissioners for Remote Work Center: $1,200 per month
3. Byrd Township (Brown County) for Remote Work Center: $1,960 per month

Fiscal Impact:
Funding for these lease agreements is allocated within the approved WDA 1 operational budget. No
additional funding is required.

M A proud partner of American Job Center network
&
m Locations: Adams County Brown County Pike County Scioto County
‘w,' 19221 St. Rt. 136 406 W. Plum Street 941 Market Street 433 Third Street
Winchester, OH 45697  Georgetown, OH 45121  Piketon, OH 45661 Portsmouth, OH 45662

OhioMeansJobs
; 937-695-0316 937-795-0316 740-289-2371 740-354-7544
Adams, Brown, Pike & Scioto Counties 800-233-7891 800-553-7393 Ext 261

A proud partner of the
American Job Cemter network




4057-A Gallia Pike
Franklin Furnace, OH 45629
(740) 259-6943

Workforce Development Board Area 1

Crystal Keaton, Director
Holly Johnson, Board Chair

www.omjwdal.org

Growing Rural Independence Together-Career Navigator Provider

Service Contract Extension

This is an agreement to extend the Growing Rural Independence Together-Career Navigator Provider
contract from July 1, 2025 to June 30, 2027. Workforce Development Board Area 1 will evaluate the need
for Career Navigator procurement in Spring 2027. The current provider will be given 20 days-notice when
Workforce Development Board Area 1 has awarded a new contract(s) for the Career Navigator program.

| agree to the modification terms for an extension of the current GRIT-Career Navigator Contract

Agreement.
Denise Reading, CEO Future Plans, Inc. Date
WDB #1 Board Chair Date

A proud partner of American Job Center network

[ |
W Locations: Adams County Brown County

19221 St. Rt. 136 406 W. Plum Street
. Winchester, OH 45697  Georgetown, OH 45121
OhioMeansJobs

—— 937-695-0316 937-795-0316
Adams, Brown, Pike & Sciota Counties 800-233-7891 800-553-7393 Ext 261

A proud partner of the
American Job Center network

Pike County

941 Market Street
Piketon, OH 45661

740-289-2371

Scioto County

433 Third Street
Portsmouth, OH 45662

740-354-7544



Workforce Development Board Area 1

4057-A Gallia Pike Crystal Keaton, Director
Franklin Furnace, OH 45629 Holly Johnson, Board Chair
(740) 259-6943

www.omjwdal.org

Growing Rural Independence Together-Through Jobs (GRIT) Provider

Service Contract Extension

This is an agreement to extend the Growing Rural Independence Together-Through Jobs (GRIT) Project
contract from July 1, 2025 to June 30, 2027. Workforce Development Board Area 1 will evaluate the need
for GRIT Project procurement in Spring 2027. The current provider will be given 20 days-notice when
Workforce Development Board Area 1 has awarded a new contract(s) for the GRIT Project.

| agree to the modification terms for an extension of the current GRIT Project Contract Agreement.

Denise Reading, CEO Future Plans, Inc. Date

WDB #1 Board Chair Date

A proud partner of American Job Center network

L |
m Locations: Adams County Brown County Pike County Scioto County

19221 St. Rt. 136 406 W. Plum Street 941 Market Street 433 Third Street
. Winchester, OH 45697  Georgetown, OH 45121  Piketon, OH 45661 Portsmouth, OH 45662
OhioMeansJobs.
937-695-0316 937-795-0316 740-289-2371 740-354-7544
Adams, Brown, Pike & Scioto Counties 800-233-7891 800-553-7393 Ext 261

A proud partner of the
American Job Center network




N Workforce Development Board Area 1
RCE DEVEL
Di#1

4057-A Gallia Pike Crystal Keaton, Director
Franklin Furnace, OH 45629 Holly Johnson, Board Chair
(740) 259-6943

www.omjwdal.org

Memorandum of Understanding

This Memorandum of Understanding is entered into on September 24, 2025 and it effective from July 1, 2025 through
June 30, 2027 between Workforce Development Board Area 1, 4057A Gallia Pike, Franklin Furnace, OH 45629 and
Electrical Training Academy, 24 Gingersnap Road, Portsmouth, OH 45662.

The above-named organizations agree that upon the commencement date they shall be deemed to have formed a
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU).

Purpose of the Collaborative: To continue WDA 1's Foundations for the Trades Pre-apprenticeship which is
operated by the Electrical Training Academy. The Electrical Training Academy will recruit, instruct and place on the job
pre-apprentice for Cohorts 13-18 at a cost of $754,932.00.

The Foundations for the Trades Pre-Apprenticeship program is designed to partner with recovery centers,
OhioMeansJobs, registered apprenticeship programs, recognized pre-apprenticeship programs and ApprenticeOhio to
battle the opioid crisis and the need for skilled trades workers in Southern Ohio.

Selected participants will join a cohort of approximately twelve or more to begin the Foundations for the Trades Pre-
Apprenticeship program by participating in the Foundations courses. The foundations courses consist of an overview of
the construction industry, prepare the participant for success on the construction jobsite, technical math, OSHA, and 1%t
Aid/CPR Certification, including a boot camp for hand and power tools, a certification in ariel lift training and conclude
with a survey of several of the building trades for career exploration. The participant that successfully completes the
foundations courses will then interview with participating recognized pre-apprenticeship programs for selection into their
programs based on current industry needs. The Pre-apprenticeship partners include but not limited to the Apprenticeship
Programs of. Electricians, (Electrical Training Academy), Bricklayers, Plumbers and Pipefitters, Sheet Metal Workers,
and Operating Engineers.

The Electrical Training Academy will transition selected participants directly into a State Recognized Pre-Apprenticeship
Program. Mirroring the apprenticeship model, this program will consist of both related instruction and on-the-job learning
experiences.

Budget: Attachment #1

Timeline: The implementation of the project will occur between July 1, 2025 through June 30, 2027.

M A proud partner of American Job Center network
@
W Locations: Adams County Brown County Pike County Scioto County

19221 St. Rt. 136 406 W. Plum Street 941 Market Street 433 Third Street
Winchester, OH 45697  Georgetown, OH 45121  Piketon, OH 45661 Portsmouth, OH 45662

OhioMeansJobs
937-695-0316 937-795-0316 740-289-2371 740-354-7544
Adams, Brown, Pike & Scioto Counties 800-233-7891 800-553-7393 Ext 261

A proud partner of the
American Job Center network



Financial Payments: Electrical Training Academy will request funds via submission of invoices to Workforce
Development Board Area 1's GRIT Project for funding of $754,932.00 for the August 14, 2024 through June 30, 2025

time period.

Workforce Development Board Area 1 Electrical Training Academy

Chairperson Date Director Date



Attachment #1

FI]UNI]ATlI]N

) Foi THE TRAvES Galg

Foundations for the Trades Pre-Apprenticeship Cohorts 13-18

Item

Description

Budgeted

Fees for instructors : electrical, bricklayers, sheet metal, low-voltage, plumbers

1 |Instructor Fees and pipefitters, operators reading, math, First-aid, OSHA etc. $103,938.00
, [outreachimarketing | mertetng mteria et TP $36,720.0
3 |Safety and Related Hard hats, gloves, lanyards, harnesses, yo yo, D rings, safety glasses, 1st aid, etc. $18,120.00
4 |Tools for the Trade Power Tools, Hand Tools, accessories, storage $62,892.00
5 |Training Materials Manikans and CPR supplies, Books and LMS, couragements etc. $19,776.00
6 |Training Materials Lab |Conduit, wire, metal, welding gear, trainers, lumber, fasteners, devices, etc $158,748.00
7 |Administration 5% of the grant cost $0.00
8 |Administrative Support July 2025 - June 2027 $299,340.00
9 |Office/Class Supplies Printer/scanner/copier combo, ink, paper, general supplies $12,198.00
10 |Occupancy Building related costs $43,200.00

Total

$754,932.00

Special Notes:

Administration line item has been removed to cut overall budget

Six (6) new cohorts, Cohorts 13-18, these cohorts will take approx. two year of management and up to 18 months of tracking

Operating Engioneers has been added as a 6th Trade option.

Parnterships with appropriate Contractors, Apprenticeship Programs, and Trade Unions have been established

Utilization of a satelllite

training location in Brown/Adams area for 1st 5 weeks of overall program




Join the Apprenticeship movement

Hosted by the Tri-state Appalachian Regional Commission Apprenticeship consortium

What to Expect:

What it takes to begins an apprenticeship
Businesses and Apprenticeships in action
Helmets to Hardhats

ESC model and pre-apprenticeship

8:00am-9:00am
Registration and Breakfast

Lets Collaborate Together

November 7, 2025 i
9am-3pm Summit

Tower Event & Conference Center
400 Tennis Center Drive
Marietta, Oh 45750

For More Information
740-525-5628
Stephanie@omjl5.com

Breakfast and lunch provided





